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' FERSONAL RBOOKD QUBSTIONNAIRE
PAR? I DIOGRAPNICAL INPORMATION

/Pe/
i, Pull mame _ ‘;m;iknton Josiie

_I. Hame in native ssript
9. Eame af Birth (1f 4iffsvent frem 1)

4 .n:hnr.hplw(-momm uu.m

Gotthar%t)NTESI (present nom de plume)

R ke 2 wiren_3/6/1504 be Plase of Wirth g .

.8 - Tresent eitineashiy, Yaoe 1f spprepriste _fusirlan, miiie..
- and sy subsequent matiesali

’ _-.,uum-c%- t ey =

k. 8¢ Tresent yesidsnse (o-_or, tu-t. sub-tement)  _Sub-tenant,
19 a Neutorstrasse, Salzburg.
‘9 DTermanen$ address (1f differeats frem §) _tenant;
9 Nachdemsee, Altmuenster on Traunsee

10. present ooeupstion (full titls, salary, ete.) employe with

verlag Herder, 33 Wollzeile, Vienna I; mainly as cover

11. FEKsturalisatiom of oudbjeet or of elese rilatives in the Umited
States (give date and name in which certifisate wes granted)

12. Relatives, friends, sorrespondents in United States. Explaim
relationship
13. Father ; full asme, o::lu tion, present unuom, xur
{1.‘ zntom‘BOlém%,‘tégyloye’w?gh Veren‘?‘te ma?%rlken Wi‘gx%na,,

horn 2/28/1878 Vienna, austrien; Vienna VIII, 17 Florianigasse

< e——

14. Nother - same information as 13 Hos
em“IO{\. with Vienna food trode fir

BOEHI, né(,a'fO’l‘H}\’URF,
Domis:ik Wiid,. born

8/25/1882 Vienna, austrian; residing Vienna VIIIL,17 Florianigasse
DECLASSIFIED AND RF'EASED‘ﬁ =
CENTRAL INTELLIGE+2E SGENLY 9
snuatssnmnusextm o 1620
NAZIWAR CRIMES 01 8CLOBURE AT W
DATE 2006
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1s.

16.

7.

19.

vife (or husband) - Full name, maiden naae, date and

of birth, date and place of marriage, natiocnality &t irsh
and sny sy uent nationalities, 'frount residenee, divores,
ennulpent. (Give date for all previous marriages)

Hildegard 4nna Theresia BOEHM, né@ GLASER, baorn 8/10/1502

_Vienna; marriege 11/24/1929 Vienna; Ausirian; i
9 Nachdemsee, sltmuenster on Traunsee p

Children - Pull names, sex, year and plase of birth,
nationality at birth an' :ny subsequent nstionalities,
present residensce. \ T

Hildegard Rosa Elisabetl),” female, born 5/9/1931 Vi :
iustrian, 9 Nuchdemsee, hltmuenster on~Traunsee

Gotthurd Michael Ant;éez;ale, born 843436 Vienne,

Austrian, 9 Nachdemsee, Altmuenster on Traunsee

Brethere and sisters - Same information sa 16.

Josez BOEHM, male, physician, born 1909 Vienna, Austrian
17 Dornacherstrasse, Amstetten

.

Belatives ia servies of any goverameat, Asmse and
pesitions hold. Tk e
none

Ides all MMW&W held with dates, mmbers,

plase of issue, ead duratisa of validity. ,

a- Austrian passport, Serie A no.241823 III/FA-1473, 49,
issued by Bezirkshauptmennechaft Gmunden on 30/8/49;
duration of validity: 29 August 1954

%
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n.

”,

Religion - Degree prastised, nesdership religieows ordere.

roman catholic

Preseats and past pelitical affiliations.

presently no golitical affiliations;
1934 thru 1938 member of Vaterlaendische Front;
1938 thru 1945 member of NSDAP, no party rank

fravel cuteids eesuntry of t residenss ~ eouniry, dates
980, po lll’:(lll 35::::0. . e .

! ! L :
between 1921 and 1938 travels to Germany, Poland, Netherlands,

Denmark, Belgium, France, Britain, Switzerland, Italy, North-
Africa, Portugal, Spain, Cgechoslovakia, Hungarg. Rumania,
Bulgaria, Yugoslavia. Albania, Greece, Turkey, Brazil,
Argentina. No details concerning dates are remembered.

- 194071941 military service Slovakia, Bulgaria; 1942/1945 -
.. Slovakia, Hungary, Rumania; Croatia, Serbia,Bulgaria, Greece
- as employe with German Foreign Office (see para.29); &

Germany 8/29/1950 (participation in Alt-Utting Katholikentag);
Germany .9/3 to 61951 (for holding a lecture at K&ln-Bensberg
during a session of Zentralkomitee der deutschen Katholiken).

Sesestion - Sehosl, lesatisn, seurse, dagree, dates

1915 thru 1923 high school Vienna;

1923 thru 1928 University Vienna;
12/18/1928 doctor's degree political science

Languages and dislects (xnu?to proficiency ss good, fair,
poer .

Latin Speek, FOOT  peag good Unders
rnglish Speak fair Read good A_Fnd.l'tlnngOd

fair

L‘i‘u.‘.‘F}ench Speak fair Read good OnderstandPO0r
Russian poor fair roor
Spanish poor fair poor
Italian poor good poor
k. 1
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29.

KHlitary service - dates, eountsy, unis, rank, duty, where
-arviaootzortoruol. deoorations, when di-oh-ru-d. why. Give
detnile over yrisoner of war.

drafted on 12/2/1940; released on 12/11/1941 by request of
German Foreign Qffice; units: 12/2/1940 thru 2/7/41

1I-Lg Nachr.i7 Voeslau (Lower Austria); 2/11/41 thru 3/25/41
Flieger les.Komp. Melacky (Slovakia); 3/26/41 thru 6/6/41
LN.Flugn.Res.Komp. 8-17 Vienna; 6/7/41 thru 12/8/41 Lg.
-Stabsnachrichten Komp.2-17 Vienna, partly Bulgaria, rank:
corporal, duty: radio communications;

war decorations: Civil War Service Cross lst and 2nd class.

Present and pes Y 'p in organisatiens (3l!¢haiiii-1
sooial, politieal, ste. o ) *
no. present membership in any organization;

1938/1945 member of Reichspressekammer;

" -1919/1945 member and later chairman of Catholic Youth

Association: 'Neuland'; ) .
1934/1938. member ‘and leading functionary of Austrian
Catholic Action; - 5 Al W

1934/1938 member of Vaterléindische. Front

st e, anin, bin (et by, o1
rhotograrhy A S

Finaneial status - ear:ings, bank depoeits, sesurities,
property.

no bank dezosits, no rroperty, no securities;

monthly earning as employe with Verleg Herder, 33 Wollzeile
Vienna.

Employment history - type of work, salary, éates, employers,
-ddroun; reasons for leaving. Inelude eaployaent by say
government.

1329/1941 editor witk 'Schonere Zuxunft', jublisher Yr.Josef
IBIRLE, 14 Wusswaldgasse, Vienna XIX, reason for leaving:
supvression of thec weekly by Hazi Government;

ol B |

Aq%

I
(WS
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.

j2.

(Vontimed) _

1927/1938 editor-in-chief of the monthly 'Neuland' suppressed
after Germen Occupation; May thru September 1938: Government
comaissioner with Vienna 'Herold Verlag' and 'Albrecht Diirer
Verlag', reason for leaving: diffe "ences with the superior
authority; 1942/1945 employe with German lForeign Office,Berlin,
first with Informationsabteilung, then with Kulturpolitische
Abteilung, rank: Wissenschaftlicher Hilfsarbeiter, type of work:
expert for South Lust Eurgpe; November 1946 thru November 1947
employe with Otto Miiller Verlag Salzburg, 11 Ernest Thunstrasse;
November 1947 thru March 1948 free collaborator with Amandus
%Zdition Vienna IX, 10 ¥eihburggasse, editor of 'Der Ortimist';
since May 1948 employe with Herder Verlag, co-editor of 'Wort
u.¥ahrheit' (wainly as cover)

Has subjeet done any writing? Give details imeluding titles

of books, articles, pubdlishers, dates. ’
A very large number of articles in the ebove mentioned periodi-
cals and others, for instance 'Neues Wiener Tagblatt', Vienna
'Presse', 'Freie “timmen', the former 'Prager Tagblatt' and
catholic periodicals; contents: cultural problems, foreign poli=-
tics, religious matters, history, critical essays on literature;
Co-editor of and contributor to the symposium 'Katholischer Glau
be und deutsches Volkstum in Usterreich' (Otto WMilller Verlag)
Eapprox.1933)' and of the symposium 'Bekenntnis zu {sterreich'
Volk und feich Verlag, Berlin, 1931).

Iist persons living at same sddress, eleose assesiates

(individuals or growps), :;yw'-l-u at home and
close associafes:(Dg.Otto SCHULLEZEISTER, editor-in-chief of

'"Wort und ¥zhrheit', Vienna I, In der 3urg, 54 Siulenstiege.
Frof.Ctto HAUZK, 3accretzry Seneral of Austrian Catholic
Action, Vierna II, 10 Karmelitergssse; Dr.Karlheinz
SCHHITTH.3, Oberwesel/hein, editor of 'Orbis Catholicus'
(Herder Verlag, Freidburg i.Zr.); In..Lambert BINDER, official
#ith Vierna 3undesmiaistecrium f.r Verkehr und verstaatlichte
Setriebe, residin~ &t Vieina XVIII, 26 Thercsiengasse

st five (5) charaster references.

[ frof Ottc*fkvzi (sz¢ para.3l),

(Frof or).ickuelt rFLIZCLER. Viennae X13I, 42 Irlasecgasse;
StLow/CLLER, :u:tlisher, .-lzburg, 11 is. nherggasse;
A1odrtaBEUCHERT, ,uhlisner, Yieana 1, 37 «ollzeile;
Sarbara von MASPTER, widow of Legubtionsrzt Hanns-Bernd von
GABPTEN, (nazi-killed lialer of an underground resistance
‘group with German Foreign Office), Heidelberg, 12 Gundolf-
strasse;

n
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Qourt reeord - _oourt, date, grrests, charges, panishuents,
sentenoes, soquittals, denasifieation, ete. . *

Automatic' arrest at Camp Deggendorf, Camp Adenbriick
(reuerbach), and Camp Marcus W.O0rr, Salzburg-Glasenbach,
from May 28,1945, thru October 3, 1946.

Deseriptien (wse Ameriesn stenderis of nessurencats, if

possible) .
A‘g. 48 gcotm straight
: t - Ve rox.160 pounds
um‘ 5"% _ e ..iﬁ' ggilthy
Ryes blue-gray Hel®  1light brown
: Pase-shaps oval Sea¥® none. ,
) o, . white Baid normal. ,
.- _Sexm-. male . Othew ﬁ‘.l"‘,‘l?:f.‘ﬂ“'.l
- GonePel Gppearansss " short-sighted. glasses)

5.

P

proaineat features

Othsy misesllanecus siegrephical dats and eomments.
Immediately after my arrival at Berlin, I joined an under-
azround resistance group within Ausweertiges Amt, headed by
Legationaraﬁ Hlanns-Bernd vonZ AEFT™N and Legationsrat

ndam Trott zu 3072Z, both belonging to the well-known
‘Kreisauver Kreis . I also had direct connections with
leading mcmbers of said 'wreis', rainly with Coune Peter
Yorck voxn Harte;burg.Ziount 40ltke end {Bisho erstenmaier
(now chief of 'dilfswerk der Zvangelischen Kirche' at
Stuttgart). AlT these persons, except Gerstenmaier, were
hanged by the lazis «fter July 20, 1944. 1 escaped trial
only zccidental ly becausc 1 was severely sick (nervous
breakdown) a-d on leave with oy family &t Altmuenster,*
therefore not ;articipatin; in the actions of July 20,1944.
Against subsequent investigations I was protcoted meinly by
Ambassador Six (Toreign O0°fice) &né Y. wilhelm HOttl.

™
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R “HREY

' PRQ Part IT

36. cc=2

} 37. Grossbahn knew Subject since begimning of World War II. Grossbahn met him
again in Salzburg in the fall of 1947 and recruited him to submit personality
reports, sending him to Vienna for this purpose. On 1 June 1948, Subject
went to work in Grossbahn's Salzburg office as an editor. (During this
period Grossbahn was working for ZIPPER).

38. Subject could be turned over at any time to an American. The introduction
could be made by GROSSBAHN's wife, in case GROSSBAHN himself were unavailable.

o L
!

_ 39. Originally Subject took up GROSSBAHN's offer of work because of financial
4 need. He is definitely pro-Western and strongly Catholic. He is probably
! also motivated by a hope for security in case of war,.

- e

"”elay

LO. RI and division files.

l1. Subject would not want it known that for a long period of time he worked in
secret intelligence.

k2. Subject has independently come to the conclusion as to the correct identity
of the service he is working for. Although this has not been confirmed to
him, he is convinced that his guess is correct.

I b o 0 vt K G2 0L )

L43. Subject was a minor Nazi member in Vienna and possibly unknowingly was used as
some type of informer. During the Anschluss he became a member of the German
Foreign Office and in this capacity came in contact with both the SD and the
Abwehr, although he was not a member of the latter organizations. From 1947
through 1949 Subject worked for GROSSBAHN who was then working for ZIPPER.

No direct contacts with ZIPPER were noted at that time.

Lh. Subject started off with reports on personalities and developed a mumber of :
informant connections. Later he became German editor of reporting, mainly i
in the political field. On the basis of his strong church connections, his i
press work, and former diplomatic assigmnment, Subject is a thorough expert
on personnel questions in South East Europe. His most promising possibilities
lie in the gradual development of new sources, especially in the political
field.

- * i L5. Not applicable

Has studied instruction material in GROSSBAHN's office, and otherwise has
learned from experience.

&

L7. Subject is closely connected with Austrian leaders of Catholic Action; he is
cultural counsel to Landeshauptmann Klaus; he has contacts with Archbishop
Rohracher; he was a leader with the "Neuland" students group. Holds strong
~press comnections, especially with the European Catholic press. Personally :
acquainted with Willi HOETTL. Handles GROSSBAHN sub-source Anton FELLNER. 4

A N A b S RN Y

!

' Jﬂf\

e o -
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500
51.

52.

53.

Sk

55.

56.

58.
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Subject to be paid LOOO Austrian schillings monthly as salary, plus 200
schillings for expenses. He is also provided with some PX supplies which
he pays for in Austrian schillings. He has an independent income, mainly
from press and radio work.

A commitment was made during the time Subject worked under GROSSBAHN for
Zipper that he and possibly members of his family would be rescued in case
of war. This commitment is not considered binding by us.

Could pass as a native in either Austria or Germany.

0f middle class origin, but has developed into intellectusl circle of upper
middle class.

Seems to be open to approach by attractive young girls. Does not indylge
heavily in alcohol, but under its influence in good company might lose some
of his normally well guarded security. Can be approached by flattery,
expecially if given by a persons he considers superior. The female approach
contains certain dangers because he would probably under all circumstances
try to "save face".

Subject is ambitious, but has a definite inferiority complex which he tries

to cover up, sometimes by harshness and sometimes by a show of superiority.

Is a very hard worker when it pays or when he believes it is necessary. Under
normal circumstances is reliable, loyal and willing. GROSSBAHN considers that
Subject is at times timid because of concern for his personal security.

Subject feels closely linked to the Catholic Church. GROSSBARN feels that
Subject probably open to German approaches if not under a rather strong hand.

Subject is a clear thinker and writes extremely well.
grapher. He has slight skill as a radio operator. He

He is an expert photo-
is extremely learned

and has a good memory for details.

A good negotiator if provided with detailed

instructions.

Would make a good high goverrment official or Nationalrat

(member of Parliament).

Furnished by Subject

If a younger assistant could be found for GROSSBAHN as a replacement for
Subject, Subject might be sent into party politics.
he could be a good investigator and informant, provided he respected the
case officer running him.

Wi
Le

In such an assignment
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legally or morelly, by the earlier ZIFPER commitment to
CC~2 on evacuation (para 1 of "RQ Pt II).
z 2 =
Distribution =
; Vien '/;. ii:cci =
: 2= |t
| g vk DECLASSIFIED AND RELEASED gy =
‘ I-Sals chrono CENTRAL INTELLIGENCE ABENCY ==
SOURCESMETHODSEXEMPT ION 3628 5%

NAZI WARCRIMESOISCLOSURE ACT

DATE 2006

SECRET
peiry EGRMATION
SECUT AR ON

ABSTA V*"rx:é
e N\ [

(ot ///ftu -4 2)

s, 51-28A Bl COPY

DECLASSIFIED Authority
NND 39210




TS YR, T

&
e

R

—n

te ueh)  AREESTROP ce 2 TP
Y ATBE L iaiaem {'Drl.:{urt){mcm :gotdhard X
A W 20 .

2. (a) Vam wards m iy M-it dgm Makwrpas wek
wo mad fureh westen Vexplitelang giu-:u

the be ing of World War TII.-
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»ﬂn Got-n report
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e g

:z«*we«m x W) Tie wt;*-pmv- nn wen

(s} an Amarican“ <

'(i)' an American
) amdes .
'ﬁﬁiz an'tngrioan'. il ]

ﬁi‘ma hinsmajec‘t was g ii-poor ﬁ.nanoia‘.l si

noe £ Sub tisd fin

S ety Cimneric Bekach j;;hja:t:
olf dpacrihad by hate/love,io nbA ned

ity in case '0f war:. ' s

3 l’tmh wurds m .unum obe. m
- whi 41le Angebexn im w

v-mm& »s% '
4reffende su der ¥ ZprER o LR
Subject, when the ocut with _ occurred, cams out with faotn
~or snppoaitiona which he had derived from a number of
publications (such as Riess's in Swiss papers), although
notloonfirmod, Subjoct is oonvinoed %o of realitién, :
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£
%
H
3
i
.
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s

Subject was a Rinor’ NSDAR Wember 1 f

unknowingly was used ss some type. of Anfe
German time, soon became & member of the Gerpen AnevwEr

. Amt and in this:capacity. came in contact with Both S and

Abwehr, without - however - becoming a member, Subject then

worked under me from 1947 through 1949 with , no direct

contgets however were noticed. - CIEPH e

" dor Eifarbeitar bhisher ge lehe .
A¥beid erscheint or auf Gruad wen l;gm::u
n_m:;npow_a‘mniu eine Bisherigen 4x
Dewertels Scane : : ok et

7 9% Weling: XY yon Messtan, Beedsektunges oter Deriehben kst

- Subject started of with reports on ‘personalities:
a number of informer connections, later became -
of reporting, mainly in the political field.. .

‘former diplomatio assignment Subject is a thoroigh expert

especially #n the politiocal field.

Studied carefully all perbeining instruction
from experience. :

- 0n basis of strong church connections, his- ru;’f’fi&’rk. ‘and

. on personnel questions in the South East of Europe. His best:
. possibilities are the gradual development of. new sources -

6 94en6 9 - falls ateht in onmdtéelbaren Gebedaed skl obven-
dienat verwendes: ik 2
not applicable DN, { ‘
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‘quellsh ~ Besokreibung) . - 3 Foir
Subject ia closely connected'with'the'Austriah<top'of the

CRRER

Catholic Action, he is cultural counsel to Landeshauptmann ;.

Klaus, I had him introduced as liaison to Archbishop
Rohracher, he was a leader with the "Neuland" students
group, he holds strong press connections - especially
within th;uagégggic European press - he is. personally
acquainte
Casual knowing informers are for instance(Prof)0tto”/RAUER: .
Wmummmm?zm tt HULMEISTER
probably unknowing and a number of others not specifically-
listed. B : : : ) : r

OTTL and is in oharge of the HH opgpation. .

5 o

13. Ist es vorgesehen oder werdsn an den ¥itwrbéiter ragplmiid
b ge z-hlunssn (menatlich, wichentlioh) goioiltqtz¢¢§%?.gh‘;fA
or andere Zuwendungen: ek S ‘_

Cecgives regular salary and dekes—se of. PX faoilities,

but hes independent income mainly from press and ?q'
*SA(OOO Loty A4S 200 WM’W‘ .
(see wawr Prepmes : b ‘
14. Sind Versprechungea oder Zusagen irgendweloher Lrt w L

iber dem Mitarbéiter gemaoht wordem: : AR

Commitment was made - during 1452 that he peisonuliyEK,bii”*

and possibly members of his family would be.rescued in
~case of war. B

Yo

e
X

% 1\;:’_ b
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.under ell circumstances try to "save his face"

SRR S

Oould mov= Ireqiyhghﬁgn inégiliitual both in Austria énd
Germany .. - L i B e
Avs weloher Gesellsshaftssshichie der Mitardelitar -

Aristokratie, oderer mttohtn‘. ttohtnl.‘ RBeuer ofs.
G Iou'nl}n sind sowehi Herkunft als pevsialiske
twisklung):

Comes from the middle class but has develeped into tho !
the upper middle class, and there in the 1ntellectualist 2
circle. S

Peretnliches Schwiishen (s.B. Alkohol, Rzuschgifte, suol.
Frauen, Homosexualisit)

Seems to be open to approach by attractive, eepeoiuzly :
young -girls. Does ‘'not take to alcohol but under its. i3
influence in good company might lose some of -his normally

well ded securit{ Can be approached by flattery EEREX
espscially if given by a "superior" person. The female :
approach contains certain dangers because he would\probubly*

Beurteilung des Mitarbeiters nach Charakteze
Yerlisslichkei$, Gefilhl fir upnd Gewissenhaf t u
8icherheitafragen:

Subject is ambitious but has a definite 1n!eriority ooqpnon 4
which he tries to cover sometimes by harshness somé¢t Eh
by displayed superiority. Is a very hard worker when: 1ﬂ
pays or when he believes it necessary. Under:normal o

es reliable, loyal and willing, his personal security see
his major problem, which sometimes makes him timid eupocihlly
in our work - needs then a strong hand that pushenzhim

Zu welcher anderen Macht wirde Hitarbeiter am ‘ i
sonst izklipierea (sus Grinden der Ideo gibsea -

Gefiihlen oder aus Oppovtunitét). Welahe Getah X o
bletst or beeinflusat oder umter Drusk gesetst s 't:b : :
(vou fremder Seite)t . .. .11, rirst the Catholis Ghuroh .
but probably open to German approaches if not undur ltrongcr3~

. ‘ _:"5’

: N é
b s | #|
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“A-good megotiator if provided with a strioct march route. _ g

'M.p Pingsrabériicke

see card s k)
- Bas dor ntmd.tu- der Urtext des T ! nlm
mu;tnt. oder wer hat dieses (nnn, :?ul’

eNERET ST G 5
M”\‘_.m e

H uw&«isw, £5.8
yoa Bw‘cs@a ua‘..

(3] | 1
Susject is an-excellent propagandiat in writing, has a ¢lear
head., -

An expert photographor and a medioore radic hand.
Outetandingly ‘learned with a good memory also for details.

Would make a good Nationalrat or kigh government official

f11led it out himself

'utm Morkugu. Angaben oto.i

LY
replacement oould be found, I would liko
g :hzd h erintg party politics where he should wii ‘
headways. It would de necusa.rg to keep him on . .
In such new assignment he could be a good Forscher emd. -
at the same time informer, provided that he rupeota
the person leading him, :

. Sl ' i e : 3 S g
2 3 ; X - N SO

.\.-

W

=

AL e IR ks oG WZ: ////fSa“s/é.D :
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= w T S DECLASSIFIED AND RELEASED BY
CENTRAL INTELLIGENCE ABENCY

i SOURCESMETHOOSEXEMPTION 3828
NAZI WAR CRIMES DI SCLOSURE ACT
OATE 2006

- i,

21 October 1952

SUBJECT: Dr.Anton BUHM

Ta Approximately one year ago I was notified by -
Mauritius that from a number of reports that had been

intercepted between HUTTL and Bonn the suspicion had

arisen that BUHM worked as a clandestine informant for

HOPTL. In consequence I made it a special task

a. to keep BUHM out of any operational kunowledge
even to a larger extent than before

b. to check on his mail by clandestinely opening it

c. to have him watched by CC 14 (which operation
brought no derogative results)

d. to have sample scripts from any typewriter
whereto BUHM was likely to have access (these
samples proved that the reports were written on
one of HOTTL's typewriters - BUHM himself is a
very poor typer and definitely had not written
the reports in question himself)

Careful cross-checking of these reports seemed to reveal
that HOTTL's informant could also have been another person
in good contact with the development in Austria.

2. I had and still have the impression that BOHM is not
trying to cover a connection with HOTTL from me. It was

with my express permission that BUHM edited HUTTL's book
"Die Geheime Front", and the work performed by him during
that period was always loyally disclosed to me. On later
occasions BUHM edited & number of articles which HUTTL has
published - also here I have the impression that I was

fully informed. When HOTTL reopened his intelligence activity
for Bonn, it was BUHM who gave me the original tip, and it
was him who kept me informed, as I believe, as far as he qu
could find out details himself. \

-
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3. I consider BUHM a fairly reliable supporter of the
U.S.course from the time when he was in charge of I.& B. .
(beginning of 1946) up to his relecase from civil internment i
at Camp Marcus W.Orr. He was released ahead of his time
upon intervention by the Austrian Bishop's Council and b
resumed his activity as a writer, ghost writer and free-lance : -
writer for a number of Austrian publishing houses. In T
particular he became employed as a peclitical reviewer and
analyst with Herder Verlag,formerly in Vienna and later in
< i Freiburg/Breisgau, a position which he still holds. I have -
’ : considered this activity an excellent cover as well as

: a good checiking position on his trend of mind. Apart from
this permanent part-employment, he is a collaborator (non
g;rmanent) with "Rheinischer Merkur", ADENAUER's house paper.

en he was offered the political editorship of this paper,

he declined, because he did not want to move to Germany
and also, es he stated, did not want to leave his employment
with us. It should be mentioned in this connection that his
financial status would have been by far more advantageous

i to him. I am also aware of the fact that he has written

: for Suedwestdeutsche Rundfunk, and it was he kimsel? who
voluntarily kept me informed.

i 4. BOEM's femily life is satisfactory, he is attached to

; his wife and two ckildren, who are nearly grown up; obviously !
his married life is not based on sex. Ever sirce BUHK has
been working for me - since fall 1947 - he has had liaisons
with girls and usually long lasting ones. In this respect
he has acted clandestinely, a fact which can, as I btelieve,
easily be understood. These liaisons heve cost him wmoney, i
and I believe that mainly for this reason he jis after '
not exactly a quick Groschen, but an additional income. i
In general. he seems somewhat atteched to money, but I have i
80 far not discovered that he endeavored to ackieve money :
by dubious means.

. T 5 His "necessity to have 2 large income" is the reason
why I consider it possible that I may have to part from him
as a close collaborator at a given time. This time definitely

has not come yet.
57'11!

6. For the time being I can hardly siee him in my office,
where he is a sound collaborator regarding personal back-
ground biography and events of the past. His operational
handling could be and should preferably be taken over by

a younger man, but failing to have any prospectfsuccessor

€ “
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: at hand, I feel that I would severely harm my work

3 if I would dispose of him by letting him go. I have

: to take into sgeoial consideration that he is a personal
: friend of the Salzburg Landeshauptmann, and that he is

= political adviser to the Austrian Catholic Action (an
institution which I am planning to use extensively as
soon as more detailed plans are laid down). I finally
must consider that it is not out of the question that

it I got rid of him, he would become employed by Bonn -
the opening thereto would exist through "Rheinischer
Merkur" end ADENAUER personally - My considerations

in this respect are concerned with the fact that BUHEM
could meke an excellent liaison between Bonn and Austria,
better than enything that exists so far. I believe that
such development wrich undoubtedly would be partly
clandestine and could become influenced by personal
resentments would be against the interest of the/Eepublic.

&.7.

Angndments
(and she has been for over two years)

BSEM's gent girl friend

uAnq%.M,dobm 1928 Maria Schmell District
Araunan, Upper Apairifia] ERLINGER lives at Briuhausstresse 10
o/ Baclarillere mmmnwbﬁﬁﬁAmmhs,
coming from Mattighofen and lived at ) sses
during such period: Hoi.t Dietrichstres 39; Alpenstr. 16;
Getreidegasse 27; Siebenburgerstr. 73 Bravhsusstre 103
Roseggerstr. 32; Briuhsusstrasse 10 again, Nothing derogatosy

is knowm so fare
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SECURIEY AMeKTaN
T Chief, SE - DATE: 23 October 1952

FROM : Chief of Statiom, Vienna

SUBJECT: GENeRAL—  Opsrational/GROOVY
speciFic—  GROSSBAHN = Dre Anwﬂg

Ref? EASA-205

JUN 27 1951

BoCU#:NT HICROFILsg SERVICE |

% Kttached is a memorardum from GROSSBAHN ing :
the implications of the BSHM relationship with Will -

second GROSSBAHN's plea in paragraph six of his memorandum; there :
is mo question of GROSSBAHN's present urgent need for him, and we a ;
do not believe a serious sscurity situation is involved. GROSSBAHN, |
definitely has BSHM sealed off from information which might do

GROSSBAHN's operations serious damsge, and we are as yet still con-:

vinced that BSHM has no mischievous intentions in this regarde i

Pleage be sure, however, that we will continue the watch and the

investigation.

= s

Digtribution
2-Wagh ¥/2 incl I
2~Vien w/1 incl ,
1-101 g

1~101 D=2e
1-<Salz chrono
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" the instructions that I had received, I had not mentioned

N A

B

2 December 1952

SUBJECT: CC-2

1. Late last spring CC 2 remarked to me that he had
received and turned down an offer from "Rheinischer Merkur"
- a weekly Cologne political newspaper, that allegedly is
ADENAUER's house-paper - to become its political editor.
Already previously he had informally told me that he had
written a number of articles for the Merkur. From further
side-remarks I learned from CC 2 that Herr Roegele, the
chief editor of Merkur was in contact with him and had also
visited him sometime during the summer in Altmiinster.

2 On 27 November 1952 I had planned to go by train to
Gmunden together with CC 2; I had however taken an earlier
train to Attnang and fthere met CC 2 with whom I travelled
together to Gmunden, where I left the train whereas CC 2
went on to Altmiinster. During this trip CC 2 did not make
the least remark that he was pressed for a conversation
with me in privacy. On the morning of 29 November I received
the letter from CC 2, dated 28 November, by ordinary mail.

I was completely surprised by CC 2 giving me notice that

he intended to leave on 31 January 1953. In accordance with

or hinted anything regarding
CC 2's connection with Hoettl.

3. I next saw CC 2 on Monday, 1 December 1952, when I briefly
confirmed verbally the receipt of his letter and at the

same time informed him that I was not ready to discuss this
problem with him. CC 2, wpon this occasion, tried to open e
conversation on. this topic but I declined by telling him

that I would have to discuss the matter first with my friends.
On 2 December he again tried to discuss the matter dut I told
him that I would prefer to delay a discussion. On this occasion
I told him that I was not pleased at all since his leaving
would create contact difficulties especially with HH 1. CC 2
replied that HH 1 could easily be hand%g& by anybody else, and
probably better than by him because he are that he wes
somehow to soft-pedalled. Qﬁ\

4. CC 3 had informed me during last week that a phone call
from Cologne had come for CC 2 after he had left for Altmiinster
the weekend before; the people in Cologne seemed nervous and 1
annoyed that CC 2 was not in Salzburg. Some days befo:5 C 3. L
ARl sZ - h
Ving —1
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had told me that CC 2 had made a remark to her that he was
frequently going to Freilassing to send his mail off from
there. In reasoning he had first said that he thereby could
evade the censorship in Austria, immediately afterwards, as
it occurred to CC 3 with the intention to make this statement
unsaid, he went on and explained that mailing letters to
inner-Germany speeded the delivery up considerably.

5. On the afternoon of 2 December I briefly asked CC2

whether he intended to move to Cologne with his family - he

had briefly told me that " he wes forced" to take up a position
in Germany with the Merkur, not explaining why he acted under
"force" - he replied that for the first half year he would
leave his family in Austria and possibly then move them too.

He further remarked that he intended to remain in Germany

for possibly two years until grass had grown over the knowledge
that he had been in intelligence, he then intended to return

to Austria. ;

6. The motivation for CC 2's decision at this time is not
known to me, I intentionally have not asked him now. From
previous occurances it does not seem impossible that he intends
to break off his connections with his present girl friend -
he has the habit of always having a permanent girlfriend apart
from his family - and in desiring to do so needs a complete
change. Undoubtedly he dislikes the work that I have presently
assigned to him and especially the way how I make him do this
work; he considers it too bureaucratic. Although he is a hard
worker, he craves for "freedom" which I would rather style
uncontrolled disorganisation. I found it especially hard to
enforce the writing of contact reports, and he only very rsluct-
antly gave in. From that time on - to my belief - he commenced
to be as evasive as possible. It seems to me to be true that

he hoped for a revival of political reporting which suits his
prolixity and unpreciseness far better. He certainly also felt,
at least for all the time since we commenced reporting in
English,that he could not fully succeed. Since he suffers from
an inferiority complex which he in front of others usually
overrides by some pompousness in an intellectual way, the

final motivation may also be found here. He also had hoped

for an improvement of his income with us - he is by no means
materially disinterested - and was disillusioned that such
increase never came up. Finally my way of handling him in "a-
matter-of-fact-way" might have gotten on his nerves. I have
often felt that he would have kicked if he had dared to, but
here his inferiority complex and lack of personal courage
stopped him; knowing this,I made the mistake of feeling too
superior.

J\
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T I do not earnestly believe that CC 2 will become a major
security risk, especially not after we are through with him.

The following security questions must however be taken into -
consideration:

a- Connections that he personally held:

Permanent connection with HH 1 , whereby he knows all details
of this operation;
permanent contact with the leading commit of the Aus
— Catholic Action, especially with3}MAUER and ASCHULMEISTER,{'{His

contact is build up on his personal connection and may recessarily
cease; . :
permanent contact with(bandeshauptm US, I hope that it will
be possible to take this contact over ‘personally; g
permanent contact with chbishy CHER through his secretary
which was arranged upon my suggestion by EE 1 for CC 2, this
contact can change hands at any time; '
assisting me in permanent contact with PP 1 and PP 3 - here he
only also knew of PP 5 but of no other sources, except that a
liaison existed to the Ministry for Interior in Vienna; I believe
that he would be scared to.digjurb af connection;

J/former permanent contact witygﬁAUTE co-editor with "Presse"
Vienna, which counection was’dropped over two years ago.

b- Comnections that he knew of:

He met AA 1 on four occasions at my house in 1949 and knows that
this connection still exists. He is not aware of the other
memebers identity; S

he knows that XX 1 was working for me until recently;

he has seen SLAA contacting me on several occasions;

he knows of an existing contact with EE J but dges not know

of its extent or value; dﬁqg’J "

he originally was in contaét with v UTSEM,[,but this connection
stopped over two years ago, after he did not Bucceed in developing
this source.

c- Access to qffice files:

He originally had access to a cover number list (three years
ago) but did not know the respective,identities. He had access
to the raw reports as submitted by the AA group which he partly
assembled and cross-checked for reporting. I once noticed that

" he went through a large number of P/reports - these reports are
locked away by CC 3, and only CC 3 and myself have keys - but
the matter turned out harmless because he assembled a long-breath
political report. He had access to the raw reports, except any
type of special invesiigation, by the PP group. He personally
received the reports submitted by HH 1. Although the theoretical
possibility exists, that he especially during weekends had the
locks - these are Yale type locks - opened, I did not notice \

. — [
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" A freqient personal contact with

I had papers laid out - this is a
habit of mine which enables me to check in connection with

any change in the way how

my photographic memory. He especially hardly could have had -
access to any personnel files which I keep completely separate
in a steel box with a Yale lock and to which only I have access.
I further saw to it that his connection with XX 1 did not grow
to friendly, whereby XX 1 would have reported to me had he )
noticed enything suspicious going on in the former office where
he and his family lived. i

d- Possible intelligence connections:
His contact with Hoettl, which seems to date back to the

£
prior to the "Anschlugg'. g
o a?t with‘FraniibTEINDL and through him wi§£+$E;ER and

(professdmmmf‘m of Braunau, :

allegedly based on CC 2's wqrk for K ER Verlag.
A reoccurring with (professor) Tar BORODAJEKEWICZ.

8. When the problem of a leakage—posaibility'first came up
in fall 1951 I ran a long term check on CC 2's .mail and connections

which then did not disclose anything derogative.

9. As a preventive measure I suggest to commence immediately
with a reputation campaign against CC 2 starting off with
church circles through EE 1, where his moral life would give

a good explanation.
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O i Ciet, EE OATE: _3 Dacemher 1952
: Attention: L A
FROM :  Chief of Station, Vienna p7)

T

SUBJECT: GENERAL— m%tiommm NﬂT Sﬁi’ n[;:"_ i:‘ "ha {TT
speciric—  BOEHM/HOETTL Contact ' |
Ref:  EASA-205, EASA-225, EASA-372, EASAm38h, BASW-82 | ' ©

1a Attached hereto is photecopy of the De 33_report-———————
'hiehvasthebuiafarourmstnjahome source is Carl o

2¢ Without revealing the source, the report was shown to
GROSSBAHNe Al) agreed this was the final straw; there was no further
point in attempting to explain away or rationalise the BOEHM/HCETTL
relationshipe mtnmdwhmmhodsurﬂmthoexuntd
possible damsge to GROSSBAHN operationse Just how to go about this
was somsthing we were trying to study out carefully and had tentatively
decided to us an alleged routins CArrisge re-test as the opsning wedge
in breaking BOEHM on his relationship with HOETTLe This seemed desirable
in order to protsct our cross check on HOETTL through Detachment 3593 HASS,

3¢ It was further plamsed to haws OROSSRAHN conduct the ine
terrogation of BOEHM, with the aid of 7 and Carrisgee The
Case Officer was not to sit in on the actual interrogations, but would
go over the results with GROSSBAHN and © -iand help plan the course
of the operatione

ke We have been in touch with & 3 by telephone and he has
advised us that the earliest he could possibly come to Salsburg was
sbout 20 January 1953, This seemed stretching out an imposing security
problem a bit far and we were with the idea of substituting the
local CID Carriags man for L- as the machine and operator are
actually not mecessary to the operation except for the purpose of giving
us a plausible excuse for getting tough when BOEHM, as he inevitably
must, goes even more sour on the HOETTL gue=tion than he did at the
last run.e We certainly would like to have/.~ 1\ with his well
roundsd interrogative experience, present at the session with BOEHM,
but we cannot see waiting until 20 Jan before taking any actione

Ss Now a new facet has cropped upe himself dropped a
bombshell in our midst by offering his resignatidne A copy of his
letter is attached, dated 28 November, which reached GROSSBAHN vis mail

Bl COPY m
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at his home on 29 November 1952 GROSSBAHN presented it to us on

1 December and swears by all that's Holy that he had nothing to do with
inducing this action at this particular time. He claims he did not
disclose to BOEHM by word or by his actions that anything was amisse
We must accept GROSSBAHN's plea of inmocence, but continue to wonder
if possibly something might not have leaked to BOEHM through the ¢
Detachment 35 ende We, of course, cannot say snd are not in a postion
to make any inquiries.

6o The resignation, notwithstanding, does not alter the fact
that we still feel BOEHM must be subjected to a complste debrisfing on
exactly what he has passed to HOETTL on GROSSBAHN operations. We now
spparently have a solid reason for demanding that he agree to a re-test
under the pretext of it being a routine procedure in the ~sesg of
resignations. We will try to work out the question of € 2’8 coming
to Salsburg at sn earlier date with MOB, If this cannot be dons, w
plan to go ahead with the idea of using local CID persomnsl and facilitisse

7e When we are through with BOEHM, ths parting can not be
anything but unfrisndlye This brings up the problems of control over
him after he has been completsly severed from GROSSBAHN, We are studying
this problea, discussing it with GROSSBAHN and will submit our recommen-
dation in our next dispatech on the matter., GROSSBAHN states that he has
plenty of "dirt" (wine, women and song affairs) on BOEHM, which means
we might be able to do one of two things; after the interrogation, we can
offer BOEHM a few samplss and tell him emphatically that more will be
forthooming in the proper quarters if he so much as takes a saall step
out of line; or we could begin to discredit him, without the direct
threat, in his police, Church, and politiecal circles, so that hig
chances of gaining sympathetic or belisving ear will be sharply reducede
In any event, we are not too happy with either solution and hope that
further discussions with GROSSBAHN will offer a bstter solution on
the problem of after-control, which is inevitably a sticky one.

8+ We wish to reiterate a point which we made, perhaps too
indirectly, in BASA-205; that is, HASS is doing this monitering of
HOBTTL strictly on his om. He is getting no direction from Detachment
35 and probably for ths lack of somthing better to do (plus the fact
that he is enough of a pro to recognise an intelligence tidebit when he
sees one) is making capital of his contact with HOETTL, We, of courss,
are not expressing any undus amount of interest to Detachment 35,
merely expressing our gratitude when they call one of HASS! reports
to our attentions

9 Your EASW=82 arrived here just as we were finishing up
the rough draft of this dispatche. We offer our cospliments for the
excellent job represented in your memoes The thoughtfulness with which
it was prepared is proven by the revelation of events as detailed herein.

SECR:™ C]
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Some of the points you raise are answered in the foregoing; others can
only be answered with the completion of BOEHM's interrogation, and still
others we are a long way from snsweringe For exampls, you bring up the
possibility of a GROSSBAHN/HOBTTL tise We can only sey that we can not

i closs our eyes to this thought in this or any future possibilities for

! cheeking this out that might crop wp in the GROSSBAHN operationse

i m'-mcmmuwmmmmdwemssmmwu .
amngcwduhanwcmsi:mdmnnmwit. We hawve 3
already asked GROSSBAHN to do a complete study on the security implica=
tion surrounding BOBHM's infidelity, which means we must get a
Wmn—do'nmhhpuuntduﬁuumuuthetypod-urm

E to whish ke has had accesse

10e Any comments or suggestions Headquarters might have on
n, thefmgoingmmqmahdbyubhuupmutrytobnngoﬂ
! BOEHM's interrogation before the caming Holiday season.

11. Note for . 1 As you can ses, this is a most serious
security problem and could possibly mean that HOETTL has been reading
mnch more of our GROSSBAHN operation than we suppose at the mements
Baantﬂutmadvisonshyphonewhatmdghtho.amtowrkout
mom.ngto&llbugbofmthaendofmmrlﬁz.
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10 December 1952

SUBJECT: CC 2

1. 0C 2 informed me this morning that he had had a vieit
from(grofessor)Ott R, secretary general of the Rustrian
Catholic Action, last Sunday at his house in Altmiinster.
MAUER had informed CC 2 that Catholic Action was negotiating
with OeVP to get a Nationalratsmandat for CC 2 during the
coming elections as a representative of the Catholic Action
within OeVP. MAUER had so far requested that the safe
mandate should be given to CC 2 with the "Hausruckviertel"
in Upper Austria.

2. GC2 informed me that if these negotiations would come

off satisfactorily — a decision would have to be reached

before Christmas - he would accept, immaterial whether at

the Hausruckviertel or another election district. He personally
did not like to act as candidate in the Hausruck because of

its peaszant and labor population to whom he would hardly
appeal. Should he receive the nomination he would wave his
plans for joining the n"Rheinische Merkur" and remain in
Austria. He declared his willingness to collaborate in this
case, naturally under "changed circumstances".

g, = On this occaaionnﬁi,al q;ﬁnfﬁrmed me that present
Minister for Educatio 0IBYWould not become a minister again
after the elections because”he could not ckle t ;Eob;
prsospective successors were ELAUS SCHNITZER?%b t no
decision had been reached so far.

4. I have to advise to carefully expect the "Nationalrat-
question" on CC 2 before taking any open steps; once a
Netionalrat he would be benefitting from parliamentary
immunity.

L et 5,
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R TS C ik ' © DISPATCH No. _EASA-16§

T “SECRET

e SECURITY IKFOGYATioN

. ) CLASSIFICATION

i TO  :  Chief, EE DATE: __12 December 1952 -

z Attention: £ _ | e Chockone
FROM :  Chief of Station, Vienna Hq Action Req. by cable |
SUBJECT: GENERAL— Operational /GROOVY 86 pasa ;pench

! :

: . sPECIFic— GROSSBAHN - CC—2 S ! .

Ref: EASW-82, EASA-409, EASA-372 —
Bee paa by pouch
. ¢ Foz fnio azd flles -/I
1, ‘Attached are two GROSSBAHN reports on the-G6-2-matter,— —

The first, dated 2 December 1952, is in answer to our request that
he review the security situation vis-a-vis CC-2, and the second,
dated 10 December 1952, covers an annoying angle on the possibility
that CC-2 may wind up & Nationelrat before Christmas.

. 2. In regard to the earlier report, it is a bit difficult
to sum:up CC-2's exact duties in one single phrase.- From what
; GROSSBAHN says, it appears that CC-2 has been doing some case work,
: some report work and some research work, all of which, we cannot .
D deny, may possibly have given him more access to GROSSBAHN operations
' . and files than all at this moment are inclined to suppose. We feel
L it is too premature to either condemn or condone GROSSBAHN (and
ourselves) on this CC-2 affair; the interrogation of CC-2 will tell
N the story. On paragraph 9 of GROSSBAHN's report, we have instructed
’ him that a campaign of character assassination should not yet be
undertaken, if at all. We wish to study this point a bit more before
deciding if such a move would net us an appreciable advantage.

3+ 'The Nationalrat business leaves us a bit cold, and we
have so expressed ourselves to GROSSBAHN, The qQuestion of immunity
appears to have little bearing on the problem, Our interrogation
will be along genteel lines, but firm, and we do not feel that CC-2
will make the matter a subject of Parliamentary debate once we make
it quite clear where he stands with us and the possible consequences
’ should he choose to air publicly the injustice he might feel has been
= done him, ’

L. We have talked withlZ Jvia telephcne, and he now plans
to be here no later than 5 Jamary 1953 or possibly before Christmas,
if he can work it into his rather heavy workload. With this improved ‘

time schedule, we m S‘Uiﬁb_for h:tm as we still feel he can help us
e vt oo O SUIALIE 3 g N
O YLy
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5, As if we didn't already have enough to worry about,

. HASS' role in this CC-2 affair is becoming even more obscure than
it has been up to now. Detachment 35 passed us a few more of his
reports amongst which we found the two we are attaching hereto.
HASS, as far as we can see, went far out of his way to make up a

report on CC-2 as he specifically states that reports which CC-2 }

sent to HOETTL can no longer be forwarded to the "Amt Blank" as

MAST has destroyed all his files. Wouldn't the same be true for all
reports originating with all HOETTL's alleged sources? Why single
out CC-2's stuff and say it specifically can no longer be sent? It
could be that Detachment 35 has over-briefed HASS on the CC~2/HOETTL
contact, certainly not at our prompting. However, they still stoutly
contend they are giving HASS no operational direction. All this
leads us to think possibly HASS or HOETTL, or a combination of the
two, may be coloring up the CC-2 reports for a completely unclear rea-
son. This would be strange, for if CC-2 is under HOETTL domination, -
it would be a poor time for HOETTL to ~ast him adrift, for our guess
is that if HOETTL ever needed a friend (or a source) the time is now.
If reports reaching us are correct, HOETTL's standing is at the
lowest ebb it has been for the past several years.

6. We are not pouching a copy of this memo to POB and FRAN,
in spite of the fact the attachment on the quarrel between the
Munich and Austrian branches of "Amt Blank" would be of interest to
them, We plan to pouch them this material separately as there
appears no point in confusing them with the CC-2/HOETTL affair, which
appears to have little direct bearing on the "Amt Blank" matter.
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s

le The attached papers ([ 1 Memoranda for the Record, 28,
30, and 30 January and GROSSRAHN Memorandum (-176) will, we hope, serve to allay N
fears of a major operational security situation in the Dr, Willi HOETTL - CC 2
relationship, Although final decision will be reserved pending the transeription
in Viemna of the technically unsatisfactory interrogation recordings and a pos-
sible CAREIAGE testing of OC 2 in March, we feel safe in opining that mo serious
sernritv damace was done CROSSBAHN by the HOEITL relationship, We also eoncur
in L 15 conclusion on the basis of available evidence that CC 2 was not
a viper at GROSSBAHN's breast, but, rather, an exceptionally naive person who,
through Providence alone, avdded doing our interests_serious harm, Although we |
do not as yet have the bensfit of the transcribed interrogation and a final ;
CARRIAGE test, we have discussed the interrogations exhaustively == during their 3 |
progress and fellowing their completion == with both [ 2 and GROSSBAHN, :

2¢ In view of what we are at the present inclined to view as slight damage
done us by the HOETTL affair, we regard the lesson GROSSBAHN =~ and we =~ have
learned from it as cutweighing any hamm done, This incident appears to have |
blown a draft of uncomfortably cold air though the last chink of GROSSBAHN's '
" I=know-my=people-thoroughl ymand=em~an~infallible-master-of=psychologywin~these~
matters® armor, GROSSBAHN, quite humanly, we believe, would have been less .
embarrassed had CC 2 turned out to be a coldeblooded pemetration agent ef HOETTL's
than he was to discover that CC 2 was a reasonably honorable little guy who didntt 4 I
tell GROSSBAHN much that he should have known simply because GROSSBAHN was aloof, . |
B ‘ chilly, and manifested no professional counterwintelligence intereste GROSSEAHN's |
=\, swakenine was so sudden and so complete finally that he apologiszed verbally te ,
o iC 71 for his apology in the final paragraph of (=176 because it ) ;
resembled Bolshevik self oriticimm, The sAlutary result of it all, GROSSBAEN
! has certified, will be more time spent by him in leaming personally what makes
his people tick, more emphasis on professional controls and less on Prussian
/” ~ discipline and the typical business executive's treatment, and a oontixming
i ! written debriefing on all contactse

C 4
3, Salsburg is deeply indebted to L ~\ who, on & moment's notide, [S:\
& ary %/4/ SECRET 2 Ft /953
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did as pit¥ent, sympathetis, and professional a job as wefve seen for

a long time, Ry his exceptionally competent briefing of himself, his
establishment of immediate rapport with GROSSBAHN, and his astutely
competent handling of the (C 2 interrcgation, he appears to have trans-
ferred a sticky situation to the profit side of the ledger, We have
learned something further about GROSSBAHN, GROSSBAHN has learmed a great
deal about control teshniques, interrogation, and practical psaychology,
and CC 2 is apparently leaving Austria for a‘nirly important job in
Germany with the feeling that if he ever had two friends they are GROSSe
BAHN and the United States Goversment,

Attashmanta.
3 3 Memoranda for the Record
=176 .
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. 28 Jamary 1953 i

MBMORANDUM FOR THE RECORD i
= “ T MiIcROFILMED ! :
wmn lv':} 1903 l

1. A"Ar reviewing the CC-2 file and discussing all the facets of this :
case with & TJ and Grossbahn, it was decided that the best approach te CC=-2 i =
would be made via the following plan: :

ATTENTION: o _
SUBJECT: Outline for CC-2 Interrogation

y o J will pretend that he had requested a meeting with CC-2 in, :
order to close out the latter's relationship with the United States Gonrment..- :
To this end the termination form will be drawn up for CC-2's signature. It ;
will be emphasized that the govermment is anxious to see that CC-2 has received ]
full financial compensation and other considerations and that he holds ne ;
further claim, either expressed or implied, against the govermment. It will
also be stressed that the govermment swears CC~2 to secrecy and that he agrees
to hold secret all aspects of his training, operations, reports, etc., with the
goverment from unauthorized individuals. Grossbahn mentioned that CC-2 is
impressed by signed statements, and this gimmick was devised as a potential i
motivation device, ‘

}
2. After the formality of official termination has been played out, :
i 1 will tell CC-2 that we want him to give us a complete history of his !
relations with Willi Hoettl because this subject has never been fully recorded ‘
and it will be necessary to do so in order to complete his file at Headquarters. i
Campliance with our request will clear the way for CC-2's consideration for re-
employment by the goverment when and if he desires to make application again.
Grossbahn related that CC-2 had indicated a desire to be re-employed by us at
some future date, and it was felt that this feiled offer of future assistance
would also motivate CC-2 to cooperate at the cross-examination,

3. We will permit CC-2 to run the full gamut of his experiences with i
Hoettl going back to the Nazi era and requiring explicit details on their meet- 3
ings during the past L% years. He will be permitted to pick his brain for
recollections and will be steered and prodded tactfully only on vital statistics,

L. If CC-2 balks, holds back, or is downright uncooperative, an attempt
at duress will be made. This will rest on the premise that our govermment has

D T SOV

scient influence in Germany and can make things very tough for him there,
0'4 W /9573
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S. The interrogation will be monitored at the CID meeting site by
Grossbahn and”it will also ba recorded. At the ¢lose of the indtial session,
; 7 Groagbahn, and [ 1 will hack over the results and arrange for
. 'a second mee if it is necessary to do so, If it becames evident that
#CC-2 has been engaged in duplicity or is trying to cover up, an effort will
be made to carriage-test him on pertinent details, S

6. This approach was decided upén because it was recognized that we had . P -
no significant ‘hold on CG=2 and had very 1ittle that we could utilize as a - »
control or motivation mechanism,

3 « 1 : 7. Tt was also recognizeg that the allegations against CC-2 stem fram
Z. information supplied by Kar]Xfaas, a dublous character from away back, who was -
= reporting on conversations egedly held with Hoettl, whose machinations in ‘
PR the intelligence game are legend, and that this foundation could spell out
’ e " invention on the part of Haas or Hoettl or both of these men,

o " (\
&= 3‘%&-/76:3&
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‘ 30 Jamuary 1953
MEMORANDUM FCR THE RECCRD ‘QN
/
ATTENTION: 3 'rm
SUBJECT: CC-2 Interrogation Resume ’ f"ﬂ Y953 - ] ’

Firat Sitting, 28 January

1. In this statement only the salient aspects of our first session
will be noted. The details of this meeting, which was held in the USFA
CID lie-detector roam and which lasted for 1 3/l hours, can'be obtained
from a transcript of the wire recording.

2, CC-2 was visibly nervous when he was introduced to [ s |
and tried to -beg off conversing in English, but after being assured thav
his linguistic quelification was perfectly adequate, he was persuaded to
do-so., His command of the language is adequate but by no means fluent;
notwithstanding this factor; it is felt that: complete understanding was
reached by both mewtiae an all important issues. As had been planned
at the outset, L 7 explained the provisions of cur termination form
to the source, and CC-2 readily signed the statement. It was then pointed
out to him that we wished to put his Headquarters file in order before he
.amu-.d his relationship with ths United States Govermment and to this end

;| = 1had a number of questions to ask about his relations with Willi
L ' Hoettl. For the next hour and a half, CC-2 answered in what appeared to

g be a sincere and straightforward manner mumerous queries put to him on

&= this subject, and what is more important, he voluntarily disclosed many

hitherto unknown aspects of his relationships with Hoettl. The most sig-
mificant disclosures were:

a, that since December 1951 he had been receiving 600 schillings
a month from Hoettl for submitting a monthly Austrian political

summary;
b, that last year Hoettl had introduced him to Harry Mast;

c. that Hoettl had frequently (five or six times) tried to get
him to admit that he was employed by the American intelligence
service;

d. that Hoettl knew Grossbahn worked for the American intelli-
gence service and had on four or five occasions tried to elicit

information from him regarding Grossbahn's financial status and
attitude toward his work, C ’ A /

o2 ﬂ; =
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3. "In regard to item o in the preceding paragraph, CC-2 btated
that-he never admitted to Hoettl that he was in touch with the.American
intelligence service but he felt that Hoettl had deduced this by his
efforts to evade mering these questions, With respect to item d

#VO, CC-2 mentioned that he was convinced in his own mind that Rudy
andl or Karl Auner had revealed Grossbahn's affiliation with the
American intelligence service to Hoettl and that he never acknowledged
his association with Grossbahn to Hoettl, He allowed that Hoettl could
have deduced that this relationship existed.

L. CC-2 confessed that he had elected to sever his relationship with
the Americans because he: (a) found clandestine work distasteful, es-
pocinlly when it was necessary to lie to his friends about his actual
‘eccupation and his true means of support; (b) felt that the Americans
had no further need for his specialty, political reporting; (c) considered
himself to be unqualified to edit military reports in English; (d) had
a burm.ng desire to be engaged in overt journalism, whers hia ideas could
be put across to the masses on a contimuous basis.

_S. At our second sitting on the afternoon of 29 Jamary, CC-2 will
be. asked to elaborate on these points and undeveloped leads: =

a. Details of his monthly political situation report for
Hoettl, including origin of the relationship, content, scurce of raw
‘material, ultimate recipient, maximum payment received, plus a de-
= tailed explanation on why he did not divulge this aspect of his
: relationahip with Hoettl to Grossbahn,

“"* b, Relationship with Harry Mast.
c. Acquaintance with Karl Haas.
d. Relations with rheoder)ilbm.

e. Disclosure of information on his carriage test to un-
suthorized individuals.

£, Why he did not report to Grossbahn on the intensity of
Hoettl's interest in his contact with American intelligence and
-also on Hoettl's persistent interest in Grossbahn,

g. His relations with Taraa)iorodajkmoz.

h, A rundown on the degree of discretion he employed in deal- .
ing with his intelligence contacts and social acquaintances.

i, Determine if he has ever been threatened with blackmail for
his illegal currency or other dealings,

e L J‘J\
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6y we vill also get CC-2's forwarding address in Germany lnd will
consider the possibility of getting him a "peak of tension" carriage
test in Germany at same future date if an examination. of this type is
deemed necessary to clarify unsettled points,- !
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AT~ e § 2

MEMORANDUM FOR THE RECCRD M MICROFILMED |

ATTENTION: = Um0y 963 =
SUBJECT: CC-2 Intierrogation Resume

| DOG. MICRO. ser. |
Second Sitting 29 Jamary

1. At this session attention was focused on the circumstances sur-
rounding CC-2'spreparation of monthly political summaries. for Willi
Hoettl, and extensive querying in this regard brought the disclosure that
early in 1952 Hoettl informed CC=2 that he had been designated the Aus-
trian representative of the Deutsche Soldaten Zei . Since Hoettl felt
unqualified to fulfill this assigmen one, he offered to share his
salary with CC=2 if the latter agreed to prepare a monthly political
situation summary on Austrian affairs. CC-2 readily accepted the offer,
and a 600 schilling monthly emolument was agreed upon for: this service,
CC-2 insists that he campleted his summaries after reviewing the Vienna
and .Salsburg press and adding some of his own ideas on political trends
and sometimes making recammendations for improvements which were required
on the local pelitical scene. He didn't comsider that any of these re-
ports contained classified information and insisted that none of the data
incorporated was wittingly extracted from reports which came to him in
conjunction with his work for Grossbahn. He confessed that on only one
occasion was he aware that information from a summary was published in
the So].dnt.on Zeitung and admitted that almost fram the beginning he had

surmised that the summaries were designated for a recipient other than the

pnpcr'a editorial staff. His guess was that they went to the Austrian i
desk of the Bonn Govermment and was pleased to think that his reports were i
helping to give the Germans a true picture of Austrian politics and he !
was thus helping to cement proper Austro-German relationshipa. ! '

2., In July 1952 CC-2 learned that Eric Kermnmayer had intrigued against
‘Hoettl and managed to pull the newspaper assigmment away fram the latter.
Notwithstanding this knowledgs, CC-2 contimed to submit his reports te
Hoettl and was campensated for them through August., Theresafter he contimed
to provide Hoettl with the summaries gratis, prompted by a feeling of ob-
ligation and because of his friendship for Hoettl, and because of the fact
that he scrutinized the press daily and prepared political summaries as an 2
avocation and in order to keep himself abreast of the local political scene,

He saw no reason for not continuing to transmit his product to Hoettl even
though he was no longer on the latter's payroll, \
- 1
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" 3. CC-2 did not report this phase of his relations with Hoettl to
Orossbahn because he was afraid that the latter would not approve of their
collaboration, As a result, he said that his conscience bothered him on
this score and he found himself in a quandry, torn between his professional
loyalty to Grossbahn and his devotion as a friend to Hoettl, He said that
had reached an impasse in this respect and that this state of affairs

decisive in making him decide to pull up stakes here and move on to

2 s s

it

L. CC=2 cousidered it incredible that what he regarded as routine
tical reporting should be snoraised bv the ultimate recipient in
first-rate information, [ 1 ointed out that Hoettl had
CC=2 in this regard and that he had also lied to him about his in-
¢ fluence with high-ranking officials of the American intalligence service; :
furthermore; that Hoettl is an intelligence flop who had sunk te the gutter i
of the game and might drag CC-2 down with him if the latter did not open J
his eyes. CC~2 was svidently impressed by these revelations and behaved
like a repentant schoolboy, volunteering to break off his ties with ) 3
Hosttl. : i

S. Repeated cross-examination failed to budge CC-2 fram the premise !
that he did not divulge details of his work for Grossbahn to Hoettl or 3
anyons else, although he did acknowledge discussing the subject in a )
generalised way with Hoettl on an occasion when Hoettl scunded off re-
garding his service for CIC at Lmmbach.

|

i

6, The importance and the proper perspective of these admissions can
best be gained from reviewing the wire recording transcript,

7. CC=2 remembered that he was introduced to Harry Mast by Hoettl in i
a Bad Techl cafe in 1952 and that he also happened to meet Mast by coin- :
cidence on two occasions thersafter, when the two were passengers on the

same triin, He avowed that he never discussed intelligence matters with

Wast and left the impression that he considered the latter to be a rela~- !
tively characterless individual,

8, CC=2 demied that he had ever met or heard of Karl Haas. He like~
wise denied that he had ever met Theodore Albert.

< imte woetm

= 9, He insisted that he had never divulged information on his carriage

- test to anyone but ¢ od be had discussed the lie detector as such
in general terms wu.zl‘)r %mm and Hoettl. In the latter in-
stance he affirmed that had introduced the subject on tas basis of

his knowledge of the machine that he had seen at the Lambach CIC office,

10. When queried en his reason for withholding information on Hoettlts
interest in the imerican intalligence service and in Grossbahn fram the

St 4 1 e B A A g Mot b s ar S ¢
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! latter, CC~2 asserted that he had always reported these conversations to
Grossbahn,

11, CC-2's relations with Taras Boredajkewycs date back to their
university days at Vienna in 1936 - 1937. It was Borodajkesiycz who intro-
duced CC-2 to Hoettl in 1938 and paved the way for the latter to arrange
/ for CC-2%'g reinstatement as a journalist in the Nazi press association.

In the post-W W II period he has seen Borodajkewycz frequently and recalled
that he had prepared reports for Grossbahn on Borodajkewycz's affiliation
with the Soviets and on his suspicion that Borodajkewycs was working for
the Russian intelligence service.

~
.

\

12. A review of CC-2's friends and intelligence contacts disclosed
that Dr. Otto Schulmeister probably surmised that CC-2 was engaged in
/ ‘clandestine work for the Americans, but CC-2 avowed that he never discussed
’ -~ 'this subject or acknowledged his affiliation to Schulmeister,

13. CC=2 could not recall any instance in which he had been the target - |
of blackmail or had been pressured into admitting that he was employed
by the Americans, ;

1k, At this session CC-2 again impressed T 2 )y his direct and:
lucid answers to all queries, He left the impression that he is an in-
tellectually honest but professionally naive person who was having his
eyes opened for the first time. At the end of the session he expressed
his sppreciation for this opportunity to get things off his chest and volun~ !
teered to sit again for questioning if it were thought necessary to do so, 1

g 3 i
i
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SUBJECT: Final Gonversation with CC 2

1« I came back to my office around 1500 hours on 29 January
1953, whereto CC 2 had already returned at approximately

1415 hours. My first impression when seeing CC 2 was that of

a chenged men in as far as he showed greatly relieved. For

at least the last year I had perceived that CC 2 was nervous,
avoided a free conversation with me, appeared to be under an
influence of nervous strain, and performed his work properly,
but reluctantly. It seems thet the pressure under which he had
lived had passed away after he had made a clean breast during
the preceding official conversation. .

2. CC 2 informed me that he would now leave for Altmiineter

and would go to Cologne on Saturday morning. There he would
commence his work with' the "Rheinischer Merkur" on 1 February
1953 as editor for internal politics. He personally would have
preferred to have the foreign politics desk whigh was als
vacant, but his superiors - possibly. including}iDENAUER -%hﬁlﬂl>
had insisted on his taking over internal politics. He hoped

thet with the support of his catholic connections he would

“ make a success, and he felt sure to find assistance from

persons now serving with the Bundesrepublik Foreign Office.
whon he had known when serving with the Auswaertlges Amt at
Berlin. Since he did not yet kmow his private addresz - his
vublisher had promised to find him suitable quarters - his
address will be c/o "Rheinischer Merkur", Kéln, Deichmannhaus.
He will come to Austria for a visit at the middle of March.

He will write me the exact date and on that occasion would
gladly see the gentleman with whom he had talked or any other
representative of the "Organization" that might want to speak
to him. He asked me whether he could discuss his conversation
with me, whereto I replied that he should not. He thereupon
stated with enthusiasm that he had been greatly impressed by
the personality, the tact, but also the sternness of his partner
in conversation who had shown extraordinary knowledge regarding
personalities and facts. His judgement of people - although

GC 2 had not asgreed with him in the beginning - was almost

yan —
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perfect. CC 2 went on that he honestly regretted not teo "
have had this conversation long before, because it would
have helped him considerably. He then asked me whether I
would be agreezble to his writing to me approximately once
a month, wnhen he wanted to inform me on his general
experiénce, on events that had occurred, on the political
develorment in Germany as he saw it, and on all matters
that might be of interest to us. I accepted expressing my
apprecietion and askcd him for his authorization to pass
such letters on to the "Organization", whereto he gladly
agreed. CC 2 concluded the conversation by stating that

he hoped that political reporting would become of interest
to us again and that he at any time - possibly after a
lapse of .one year in Germany - could resume work for us
directly or indirectly.

Ds After mutual expressions of friendship CC 2 left
shortly after 1600 hours. He had previously handed over
to CC 3 his agenda in good order. ;

4. During the debriefing I noticed that CC 2-made minor
misstatements:

a. I do not recall that he ever asked for my consent to
pass eny information on to HUTTL and especially not
concerninz KAUDER-KLATT.

b. He did not report on his re-occurring meetings with
Professor BORODAJKEWYCZ since 1949, concerning whom
ard his service for the Soviets I had spoken to CC 2.

¢.- CC 2 k2d not mentioned to me for a longer period
his meetings with RASCHHOFER, who is or was a member
of GEVIEY's "Professorenklub" and is connected with
FrofessorfROBERLANDER and whom I considered a dangerous
contact for a vossible attempt to defect CC 2. T had
commented on7GESCHHOFE to>CC 2 in an unfriendly way.

d. CC 2 had vnrobably during 1950/1951 informed me on two
occasions that ZOTTL had sent him raw material for
articles which I understcod wonld be written under
CC 2's name. I hzd then instructed hir to remain in
loose contact with FUTTL and alweys renort thereon
so thet we should lmow what HETTL wes deoing, but had
warned him not to set involved beyond ar occasional
social contect or the editing of TTL's second book.

%(f;\._
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I had authorized hiﬂ to0 cautiously tsXke up the
currency matter (D-Mark exchenge) for cheeking
purwoses only. ' o

e. I had authorized CC 2 to write for different papers
on historical topics, but ©rad asked him to keep me
informed. This together with his FEerder employment
wes his cover. I have never authorized him to
write for EOTTL apart from re-writing HOTTL's books.

£. CC 2 has never mentioned meeting. any of HOTTL's
collaborators, and especially not MAST. On this
and other occasions he did not comply with my order
to write contact reports on any meeting that directly
or indirectly could have had intelligence or security
importance. ’

g. During 1952 CC 2 revmorted to have met HOTTL on
27 February, at the middle of March, 5 August, .
10 October, and 14 November (see contact and other
reports). .
During the debriefing I hed the impression that
GC 2 on 21l major issues did not try to cover up. In fact,
his resignation now appears as the reaction of a man who
became involved agesinst his better intentions and is now

striving

for solid ground under his feet. It does not

appear thet CC

2 has defected any knowledge voluntarily,

and if he did so

despite his better intentions, this

originated from a general wealmess in character almost
typicel for Austrians in general and even more for members
of his class. The experience collected from this case
indicates the necessity of increased control, schooling,
and contact apart from the routine work. This I seem to
have insufficiently observed.
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Preface to Transcription i

1. The interrogatory approach to the cross-examination was one of
feigned friendliness and consideration for CC-2's welfare. It was recog-
nized that tangible motivation instrumentaldities were not available and
that duress could at best be employed as a short-range bluff. Time was ;
of the essence,. since CC-2 was scheduled to leave for new employment in - e o
Germany in a few days. Fortunately, a few clues about CC-2's personality % i
were at hand: he was @n introvert, probably suffered from an inferiority, ' ) » 4
was impressed by written agreements, and probably had a latent desire to re« - ’
sume work for the Americans. This information came from GROSSBAHN. H

2, All of these traits, plus others which were discovered as the inter-
view proceeded, were exploited. First, CC-2 was induced by judicious
flattery to converse in English, his weakest language. Concormitantly, he was
made to feel that the Americans were sorry to lose the services of such a
capable veteran operative and hoped that he would one day elect to work
again for the Americans. To this end it was necessary to put his personal
.file in order and he would therefore be questioned on his relations with
Willi HOETTL and others.

3, CC-2 gave evidence that he is a perfectionist. He hesitated to
speak English since he-could not do so fluently, ILikewise, he disliked edit-
ing military reports because his military experience was limited, He has
considerable pride in his reports as a journalist and like most writers has
a penchant to be read by an admiring public. This could never be realized
in covert work; hence, his distaste for sub rosa activity. Essentially a
gincere person, he found it repugnant to lie to friends about his intelli-
gence assignment. The switch in his assignment from political reporting to ]
other coverage removed the last vestige of personal satisfaction which he
derived from his daily chores for GROSSBAHN. From this point on he searched
for an escape, :

L. Complications which weighed on this complex were the impasse that
he reached when he concealed his relations with HOETTL from GROSSBAHN, and
when bz hid an erotic affair with his mistress, ANNY EHRLINGER, from his
" wife, There was also a penetrating religious facet which could not be rooted - o

out but nevertheless manifested itself. CC-2, professedly a devout Roman 1
# ; Catholic, had strayed from the path and was undoubtedly vexed by the de-
viation. ’ :

S, As a law-abiding citizen, CC-2 éiaclosed that he was preoccupied
because of his illegal currency deals for HOETTL and evidently expected some
pressure to be applied to him by the interrogator on this score. It is
well to bear this factor in mind, since it constitutes a potential control
factor if CC-2 fails to observe the terms of the secreey\oafh which he signed.
’ C J
. SECREY QS\
’ SECURITY 5T GRMATION . ) ]
s PR NS UEEN EED AN, BELEASE D BYs il
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6. After CC-2 made a clean breast of his relations with HOETTL.and
still manifested a strong attachment to the latter, it was felt necessary
to expose HOETTL as a fraud and an intelligence reprobate in order to

jolt CC-2 into the realization that his admiration was ill-considered.
Basically naive, CC-2 was convinced that he had narrowly missed damaging
involvement with HOETTL. He wolunteered to break off with the latter and
avowed that he would remain aloof from intelligence entanglement after

he arrived in Germany to commence work at his new job.
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First Sitting: 28 Jamary 1953
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E. a

Good afternoon, Doctor. We are glad that you were able to find time
to attend this interview. I understand that you speak English?

A 1little, but I would prefer to speak German.

Your English is undoubtedly much better than my German, so let's
cosmsnce in English-——if we encounter difficulties, then we can
switch over to German, and I'm sure that in this way we'll reach
complete understanding. We will understand each other completely by
using both languages, but I think that you are quite fluent in

Bnglish, aren't you?

(in German) May I answer in German?

I would prefer that you snswer in English.
I txy.

!’hﬁ is good practice for you.

I will make faults (sic).

Well, that's all right; everybody makes faults. If I were o try to
spuktoyuninoexm,lwonld-ke-oreormre.

Doctor, the reason that I have asked to see you is because I understand
you are going to leave ocur service now. We're.sorry to hear that;
you're ons of the oldest employees that we have in Austria and we
feel that you are a specislist in your own field of political reporting,
but we also understand that if you have an offer of a better job it is
quite necessary for a man to look out for his future, and we can under-
Mthatﬂmnnttochmgoitiamri@ttodow. The

do not hold anybody to work for them when the person doesn't

o thincs'thatnuﬂldommonistogetymsigna-
ture on a ocument which we a reJedsp form. It includes two pro-
visions. One is a paragraph in which you acknowledge that you have
received payment from the govermment for the services that you
have rendered and that you have no claim; that nothing was promised
to you which you didn't receive from the U, S. Government--you under-
stand that?—and that second one is that you will forever hold secret
the nature of your work in our interest.

»
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That is in my interest.

Yes, but from the Government's standpoint--and I am representing the
Government--I have to put it that way. That means everything that
you have done in the way of writing reports and in the way of opera-
tions, so if you are in agreement with it I will bring out the
document and let you read it over. If it is not clear, I can explain
it to you.

(Reads the document and understands its content without difficulty.)

You must understand my special knowledge is not usable to the Americans
any more. I am a political analyst.

The program is a long-range one. dJust as your career is ome which you
look at for 20, 30, or LO years, the program of the U. S. Government
also doesmgt go from 1950 to 1951 or from 1953 to 1955; it continues
on.

(S_igning the document) Is that all?

Could you put the date in, please? Thank you very much,

Do you smoke, Doctor?

No.

Not even a pipe or cigars?

Nothing at all, '

You are very unusual in never smoking at all. We have something in
common.

T understand that you are going on to Germany.
To work for the Rheinische Merkur.

and to work for the Rheinische Merkur.

But I hope that it would be a temporary job. I shall return to Austria
as early as possible, perhaps in two or three years.

As long as that?
Yes.
And you will be doing political editing?

Home policy.
What do you mean by home policy, 1%1¥eurnal politics?
SVt
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Yes, internal politics. ¢

You will be reporting on the various political parties, and their
practices and their aspirations?

Yes, but I hope that I can change to the foreign policy work.

Do you prefer that--the foreign?

Yes. I am more experienced in foreign policy. However, the editor-
in-chief has discussed with ADENAUER my assignment, and ADENAUER al-
legedly said that he would prefer an Austrian who is not inwlved in
the clicques.

That seems very unusual, doesn't it?

Yes.

That's a pretty old paper, the Rheinische Merkur; the history of the

-paper goes back some time, doesn'ty it?

There was a paper issued-in the 19th century at Kobleng which had the
same name. The present Rheinische Merkur was founded in 1946, also at
Koblens. !

Was it in existence in the Nazi period?

No, the founder was an immi grant named KRAMER who lived in Paris and
then moved to London during the war. He returned in 1945 and togethier
with the present editor-in-chief started the paper. It is an in-
dependent political paper. It is difficult to run such a paper.

There are very few countries where you can be really independent in
journalism,

Our so-called Austrian independent papers are not really independent
but are dependent upon certain political or financial groups.

In Austria it is slmost impossible...the Salzburger Nachrichten, for
instance.

(1aughs)

I was interested in your statement that you might in the future sometime
wish to join us sgain, and that was the second reason for my being

‘here. We want to close out your record in our headquarters. We're on
a friendly relationship and in the future, if you feel as though you
desire to come back with our organ\iution again, that will be taken

, afl

(in German) @ne doesn't kmow.
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under consideration; but before we can close the record satis-
factorily, we would like to get from you the whole history, in as
much detail as possible, of your relationship with WILLI HOETTL.

I would appreciate it, and the Government would appreciate it, if
you would start from the very beginning--from Adam and Eve--and
take your time and recall as much as you can about jour meetings,
conversations, and dealings with Mr. HOETTL going back into the
LO's. If you don't mind, I'l11l take notes on this, asking questions
once in a while if something is not clear. b

| C: Now start from the beginning--the years, the dates?
D: Approximately--as close as you can give them,

C: I became acquainted with HOETTL in 1936 or 1937, through the inter- i
vention of DR. TARAS BORODAJKEWCYZ. !

D: Was that in Austria?
C: Yes, in Vienna.
D: What was Mr., BORODAJKEWCYZ by occupation; was he a journalist?

C: No, he was an Austrian and was employed by the State Archives in :
Vienna, on Minoriten Platz. . {

D: And how did that meeting occur? Was it just a social gathering? ,

C: Yes, a social gathering, My wife and I were invited to BORODAJKEWCYZ's -
home for a reception and there I met HOETTL for the first time. But :
my acquaintance with HOEITL was not important then; I met HOEITL in i
the next two years only occasionally, without having a more intimate )
acquaintance with him, but in 1938--I didn't know then that HOEITL i
already worked in the illegal Nazi Party intelligence. I realized it ’
only a few years later. After the arrival of the Germans, in 1938, I i
was excluded from the journalists' association because of my previous i
comnections. It was my Catholic connections, and because I had
allegedly worked for the Catholic Action intelligence service.

2 D: And you were brought to the police on that occasion, or did your boss
Just tell you that you were dismissed?

C: (Did.not understand the question and so it was rephrased.)

D: Were you discharged from the association by one of the officials or
were you called to the police first?

-l -
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C: By one of the officials. It was an internal proceeding within the
organization, but the exclusion was based upon a police report. I
tried to get into the association again in order to be able to be
gainfully employed, and BORODAJKEWYCZ was ready to help me do so,
and he discussed my situation with HOETTL., I had appealed to
BORODAJKEWCYZ, and BORODAJKEWYCZ took up the matter with HOETTL.
HOETTL then worked in my interest. I had a meeting with HOETTL and
agked him to help, and HOETTL did so. I was reaccepted for employ-
ment after about six weeks. Then for some time I had no further
connection with HOETTL. I suppose HOETTL went to Berlin, and I re- -
mained in Vienna. In the first year of the war I was employed with the s
Viennese newspaper Pleasant Front, the same publication for which I .
worked since 1928.

D: What kind of newspaper was that? -
C: A weekly publication directed by DR. JOZEF EBERLE.

D: Is he from the EBERLE Press?

C: No, he had nothing to do with the EBERLE printing house.

November 1940 I was drafted into the air corps. I was discharged in
December 191 to go to the Foreign Office headquarters in Berlin.

D: TWhat was your specialty then? _

C: I was a member of the Information snd Cultural Department. It was a
kind of propaganda detachment, and besides, the detachment had to
supply German artists and singers, professors and scholars, for
lectures abroad. One can say it was principally a propaganda office.

D: Who was the head of that office?

C: The last head was Ambassador F. R. SIX (phon). SIX came from RSHA.

D: And you were tied in with the German intelligence? This office was
tied in with the German intelligence some way, was it not?

C: No. German intelligence tied into the Foreign Office through a
special detachment headed by (could not recall the name)--it was
through the Deutschland Abt.

D: The office in which you worked was primarily overt?

C: It just collected overt publications and issued bulletins, posters,

and so on, and did translation work, It directed expositions abroad.
In Berlin I saw HOETTL occasionally. We never discussed service matters.

-

 paral
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What was he doing at the time?

Then I supposed he was in AMT VI, but now I know that he was., He
was in charge of operations in Italy, Bungary, and Croatia and was
sbroad often.

Was he pretty much of a big shot?

Yes.

Quite an important official at this time? Did you see him often?
No, not often.

Did you dine with him?

Yes, at the Hotel Adlon, four or five times in the two years--or maybe
it was ten times, I don't recall. In any case, it was only a personal
contact; no service matters were discussed. Then I collaborated with
the resistance group (German resistance) of beeftin and Yorékvon
Wartenberg. Haeftin was the man who was responsible for having me
transferred to the Foreign Office headquarters in Berlin., Hadftin

had previously been German Cultural Attache in Vienna and then was
transferred back to Berlin and when there had me called to Berlin be-
cause he knew that I was a Balkan semi-expert.

When m that?
My cooperation with Hasftin commenced in January 1942. When the 20th of

July 19kl attempt on Hitler's life failed I was on leave at Altamumster
and probably therefore I was not arrested. I wondered for a long time

.why I had not been. I had resided in Berlin in Hasftin's and Warften-

berg's home for a long time, and the fellow who took my room in
Wartenburg's home was GERSTENAMAY S hen), one of the leading collabora-
tors with Mﬁms (phon). If I recall correctly, I met HOETTL
for the first after the attempt on Hitler's life at the beginning
of 1945 and then HOETTL told me that he while in Vienna had inter-
cepted a message from the Gestapo, which had hindered the investigation
against me and that as a result he was responsible for saving my life.

How did he come to diwulge that information to you? Do you remember
the circumstances?

(Did not understand the question and so it was rephrased.)
How did he happen to tell you that?
We were both in Berlin., He phoned me at my office and we met at the

Adlon, and during the conversation he began to speak about the attempt
on the 20th of July, HABIN, and the others,
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When was that, in 19457 Before the end of the war?

Yes, but he didn't come out clearly and disclose this information at
that time. The detailed explenation was made to me after the end

of the war. In the early part of 1945 HOETTL' statements were merely
allusions. I also felt that Ambassador SIX had done more to prevent
my arrest than HOETTL because two other members of SIX's detachment
had been arrested and were executed after the attempt failed, and

- SIX was not anxious to have others of his personnel apprehended on

the-same charge. HOETTL contacted me again in 1947 and told me about
his plan to write a book about his experiences with German intelli-
gence. ;

Was that early in 1947?

The dates are difficult to remember. He told me of his plan to write
a book on his intelligence work and his experiences during the war
and he asked me to edit it. I accepted, and then in 1948 or 1949 I
completed the work and I received royalties from the sales.

What type of financial arrangement did he have with you?

I was to receive 24% of the sales royalty.

Did he give you anmy cash in addition to that? Was that your complete
payment?

Yes, that was my complete payment.

Did he give you anything in addition?

No, but occasionally he asked me to edit newspaper articles, for
which-HOETTL provided the raw material. He gave me these assignmente
while I was engaged in editing his book and also afterwards.

How long did it take to finish his work?

If I remember it correctly, the work was finished at the end of 1949.
About how much money did you receive for this job?

The payments are not yet completed, since the Italian, French, and
Spanish editions have not yet been accounted for.

What other work have you performed for Mr. HOETTL?

I edited articles on the Commnists' activity in the Salzkammergut,
including the preparation of partisan groups, the Communist mountain
redoubt in the Totes Geberge, and so on.
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Was that quite recently? Did it have to do with the activities of
GEISWINKLER and his group? Did you believe that information?

(Laughs) That was for the press.

How much did you get for an article of that sort?

The payments for articles varied from 500 to 800 to 1,000 schillings.
And you did other articles for him? What kind?

HOETTL was the correspondent &nd representative for the German
Soldaten Zeitung, and he asked me to deliver to him monthly political
Situation reports or Austria.

And you did that on a monthly basis?

Yes, on a monthly basis.

When did that start?

1952.

And it contimued up to the present time?

Up to the present time.

And what did you say you rece%ved for that work?

I received different fees: 500 to 600 schillings.

Why did HOETTL want you to do that? He's a pretty clever man; couldn't
he do that work himself?

HOETTL is not capsble of writing good critical journalism and he didn't
have the capability fo expand on an ides in writing, HOETTL is not
a writer. s

Not a journalist?

No.

On the basis of the work that you were doing for HOETTL in 1952, you
saw him a few times a month?

Every six weeks or two months. We had an exchange of letters.

-8 e .
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D: Did he send you your money in a letter, and you sent him the mam- !
scripts by mail? ;

C: Yes.

D: Let's go back to the time you started to work on the book. In that
period, 1949, you must have seen each other quite often as you pre-
pared each chapter?

C: No, I didn't see him any more than once a month, ' i e

D: Even when you were working on the book?

C:' Yes. : -
D: Did you handle most of your business by correspondence?
C: Yes.

D: Where was he living at the time?

C:+ He was living at Alt Aussee, where he is presently living....where he
is 1iving now? or where he lives now? My faults are horrible, :
isn't it? (sic) !

D: No, not at all, I have understood everything you've said perfectly.
After all, that is the function of a language: to transmit thoughts :
and ideas. It is very nice and a sign of culture if you can spesk a i
langusge perfectly. I should try to do it in German and you should !
try to do it in English, but if two people can get together and i
understand each other as well as we do-- I-can say that your English !
is adequate but I can't say that it is fluent, but you can understand 1
me and I can understand you.

In these meetings that you had with Mr. HOETTL, he must have been
interested in you and how you were making your living, was he not?
How did you explain this to him?

C: I explained to him that I was a collaborator and a co-editor of the

- . Wott und Wahrheit, published by the firm HERDER in Viemna, This is

a job which 1 actually held, and I told him that I was a Salzburg rep-
resentative of the HERDER firm, which of course was not actually
true, but my statement on my affiliation with the HERDER publishing
company in Vienna was true. I never had to tell hir how I made my
money or how much I earned,
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Did he ever indicate that he knew that you were engaged in some other
activity?

No. But in 1952 he began to ask me if I was not working with American
intelligence and gave me a hint that he knows that I did, I tried to
evade answering his questions and broke off the discussion of this
matter but he would return to it. I believe that he was informed
either by RUPERT MANDEL, who knew that I worked with GROSSBAHN, or by
AUNER, We never discussed this matter specifically. He queried me
and I evaded answering the questions. I did not expressly deny because
I believe that hd actually knew,

He acted as though he knew it?

Yes.

Did he act as though he knew you were in touch with GROSSBAHN, or did
he just indicate that he thought you were working for the Americans?

Working for the Americans. We did not discuss GROSSBAHN at the same
time, On other occasions he inquired how GROSSBAHN lives and if he
were in ggod financial circumstances and if he had satisfactory work
canditions and so on., He knew that GROSSBAHN lived at Altmunster and
that GROSSBAHN worked for the Americans but he did not know that
GROSSBAHN and I were collaborating.

You are quite sure he didn't know that?

Yes.

Did he -ask you !from time to time about your work with the Americans?
Yes, but I never made any concrete explanation.

Did he ever ask what you were doing for the Americans?

No, no. He didn't ask so indiscreetly, He only wented to know if
I did work for the Americans, .

He just wanted you to admit that?
Yes.

But you didn't admit it?

No, but. I did not deny or admit it.
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So he could have deduced it or might have thought it?
Iés, he could have deduced it, I think.

From a facial expression? Or from some other action?
Yes, or from my evasion.

He's a very clever man. But he never pushed you on the point and
said, "I know that you work for the Americans," and so forth?

He did not. He never tried (in German) to force me into a corner.

How often did he infer that he knew that you were connected with the
Americans?

Not at every meeting, btut about every second meeting.
He would bring it up in a very subtle way?
Yes, in a subtle way.

And this started sometime in 19527 The early part or the middle of
19522 2

It's very difficult to say, but I think it was the begimming of 1952
Approximately how many times did he inguire about GROSSBAHN?

Oh, four or five times.

And always along the same 1ine? What would he ask you?

He used to ask me about my acquaintances and among these acquaintances
he mentioned GROSSBAHN's name.

The other acquaintances he mentioned on these occasions--were they
mitual friends of yours?

Mutusl friends, yes, politicians.
Whom you should know anyway ?

Yes.

But in the case of GROSSBAHN's name, ‘wasn't it out of context because
he didn't know that you and GROSSBAHN were acquainted?
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He didn't know that, but he connected it always with other persons
and questions. :

Did he ever use that same techniqye in regard to other individuals in
whom he .seemed to have a special interest?

I suppose that you are interested in men who afe suapecteEc:‘ or supposed
to work for intelligence? He asked about DR. w A0 KARL WON
WINKIER, who is a friend of HOETTL's. Hawv

And what did he want to know about men like WON WINKLER?

Whether he was living at Salzburg or had moved to Vienna., He also
asked sbout OTTO BEGUB, KAUDER-KIATT, and AUNER.

Did you ever ask him, "Why are you interested in these people, Willi?"

No, I tried to evade discussing them because it was painful for me to .
be asked sbout these persons. I was in a very difficult situation.

Did you ever meet any other people when you went to see HOETTL? Did
he ever introduce you to anyone?

Oh, once he introduced to me HARRY MAST.

What did he say about BARRY MAST?

He said that HARRY MAST is an old intelligence man, worked first for the
GEHLEN organization, then was fired by them because of his connections
with HOETIL, and then was employed by the HOETTL group and now is un-
employed. = .

Were there any other people like MAST toshom he introduced you?

No, I can't remember any. He always said that he had good American
connections but that he would not use them because the time for his’
return to service with the Americans wasn't right.

Did you ever lend HOETTL money?

No.

Did he ever lend you money?

When he gave me money it was always related to the book royalties or
some other editing work.
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D: I don't mean did he pay you money, but from the standpoint of borrow-
ing, did he ever lend you money and did you ever lend him money?

C: No. But on the subject of money, he repeatedly asked me to change
sovereigns and gold napoleons and sometimen also dollars, francs.

Dt And you did that for him?
Cr I aid, X : & .

D: On how many occasions, would you say?

Two times sovereigns and.mapoleons, one time a golden ring, one time

a golden watch, snd three or four times dollars. The other currency -
that I changed——(in German) I imagine that we are coming to that yet--

(He showed a sign of concern in this regard.)

I'm not so interested in the criminal aspects; that isn't my job,

® that's the CID's job. We aren't sitting here for that reason, but I
would like to learn from you why WILLI asked you to negotiate in
these black market transactions. How did that whole thing start?
‘rh;y seem to have gone on for some time; they mst have gone back to
1952,

C: Earlier; 1951,
P: How did the whole thing start? Do you remember?

: C: It was Christmas 1951, I remember it because he gave me the reasons
s for selling the gold things; he said that he had to pay for Christmas
presents.

D: Was there a relatively large sum of money involved?

C: No. The objects were worth about 3,000 schillings. I don't remember
any tims he nnuobjoctsormmytoexchmgovhmtha value was
more than 3,000 schillings, except the German marks transaction——the
German marks (which I exchanged) which he pretended came from a payment
fros a German publishing house. N

D: WILLI is a men who knows a lot of people. I am trying to £ind out why
hovanldh-nubdyouhodohinthistuorntherthmtouk'aoneono
else. After all, you weren't dealing in the black market in money
at that time, were yout It mst have been difficult for you to estab-
14sh a contact in that circle.

$t C: No, it wasn't, Next to my house is the Riedenberg, and there are many

Jews on the styest. Inthoudunonrybodyinmtmmtymen-
4n this sort of transaction. HOETTL oconsidered me as a relisble

frund,anrllnnotcondmdthathehndnwperaomvhonhotruud.
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D: Who do you think his other trusted friends were here in Salzlnrg? !

. Do you know any of them? 1

ct I know that THEODORE ALEERT is his Salzburg representatives

1

t i

D: . So you feel that he trusted this to you because he felt that you were i

C: . I ﬂﬂ.nk’so. i : J e . :
Ds Did you receive a commission for doing this?
/7
C: Noso . ! %
Ds Wasn'y there quite a risk involved in regard to the last transaction? f
Ce Perhaps, but I felt obliged to do s0.
Dz Why did you feel obliged?
C: I believed then and I still believe that he really did something to save
uy life. 5
Dt So you feel obligated to him for that?
Ce Yes, and I did it out of gratitude.
D: InthecueofﬂnGemmmka,mitquiteeuytoﬁndnmnewho :
could handle such a large sum of money? '
c: Oh, yes, quite easy. Would you like to know the names of the dealer? i
. 1
Dz No. Did you do it with one person or were there mare? :
‘ : Cs With one person. l
i D: Well, maybe you had better tell me. Who is this person?
| = C: There was & so-called DANIEL; he is no longer here. There was a certain
: WEICHSMANN. mefhi.rdoneisalmawinﬂnu-s.orcmda,lm't
‘ 7 remenber.
| Dz One was DANIEL, one was WEICHSMANN, and the third you can't remember—-
80 it was three men, then?
Ct Well, no. The three warked together.
Dz Is HORTTL scquainted with your family? ,
-1 - l
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Yes, he knows my wifee.
How did he meet your wife? Did you introduce him to her?

My wife was invited to visit BORODAJKEWYCZ's home with me at the time
that I first met HOETIL.

You are sure thnt.you never told WILLI anything about your connection
with the Americans? .

Oh, wuite sure--regarding the details--quite sure. He never asksd me
for details.

. He never asked you for details; he indicated that he knew that you

were in touch with the Amsricans?

He dide I did not deny this connection.

Did you ever engage in conversation with him on the subject?
No. _

Did he ever try to use pressure on you?

No.

He isn't that kind of a man?

Well, no.

You know, WILLT is an interesting individual from the American point
of view. As you know, he has worked for the Americans, he was dropped
and then he was picked up again and then he was dropped--I don't know
how many times myself. You probably know him better than any American
has.” What is your opinion of the man from the standpoint of loyalty
to the West, for example?

I am happy that you give me the opportunity to say something about
this. I am deeply convinced that HOETIL is for the West and that he is
for the closest cooperation between Germany and the United States. I
am quite sure that that is the case. But I have detected that he has
soms remnants of pan-German feeling. He is not trying to foster a
union between Germany and Austria, but he is convinced that Germany is
the leading power in Europe &nd that Germany has to control the
Balkans. This is my opinion, but he never expressed his opinion to
me; I concluded it from my conversations with him. I say that HOETTL
would never collaborate with an intelligence system which is not
sponsored by the United States or in a friendly connection with the
United States. I concluded that he has also tried to get in touch
with the French intelligence because he often traveled to the Vorarl-
berg and he had a French officer as a liaison or a friend.

SECRET
SECURITY ¢ MATION
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Now I will give you my criticisms of HOETTL. HOETTL has no political
aspirations but he is anbitious politically in the sense that he would
Jike to direct political activity from the background.

He i'u ambitdous then in that sense.

Yes, and he will always try to use his intelligence knowledge to create {
a political effect. He does this becsuse he feels that’'intelligence !
must be integrated with political action. |
The second weak point is that he is a romantic:lst'.

Why do you say this is his weak point? Is it because he is not f
practical or realistic? ;

He seems to be realistic but he does not seem to have the ability to
distinguish the true from the untrue.

You mesn that he can't distinguish the truth from fantasy. Is that an
intentional or unintentional characteristic?

Unintentional.

You think that it is unintentional. Now let's take a concrete example .
before we go to the third point. In the case of the GEISWINKLER
article, do you think that he didn't know that was a fake?

(Laughs spontaneously at this.) That was a special case. He just used '
the material to make a good press article. Maybe he knew that the :
GEISWINKLER articles were not true but to make the headlines and to
create a desired effect he used them.

In that case you would say it was intentional?

!eq, it was intentional.

But there are other cases you feel where he has received false in-
formation and he actually believed it was true?

He has a bias for the mysterious, the unusuale % ,
The sensational? Of course, I understand. What was the third point?

The third point is he is too optimistic. He believes that what he is
contemplating is already true. i

And you don't think that this is a controllable factor; it is just
his desire to have a thing come true which makes him believe that it

is actually true?
-l = m
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Yes. A fourth week point: he has a poor understanding of human nature.
He trusts men who don't deserve to be trusted.

And now some more strong points: he is an active individual, and has
good ideas, imagination, good personal relations and is acquainted with
a large number of people and he has had a large experience in intelli-
gence worke

But how about his character? That is the thing with which T am parti-
cularly concerned. As far as your case goes, he evidently saved your
life. He was very courageous at this time. Were you a good friend of
his when he saved your life or just an acquaintance?

He was just a good acquaintance but not a friend.

Is he an honest man? If he gives you his word can you depend upon it?
For instance, in your business dealings when you first worked on this
book, he said "I will give you 2%%." Has he given you this? Have you
ever had to ask him for it?

No.

Never?

No. His publishing enterprise was often in poor financial circumstances
and then payments to me were suspended, but I eventually always received
my money. He is vain. T cannot imagine that HOETTL would harm or
intrigue against a friend.

Is he loyal to his friends? If one of his friends were put in jail for
three or four years, he would stick by the friend, help him out?

He would do that. One can say he is too good. For instance, in the

- case of ERICH KERNMEYER: KERNMEYER first collsborated with him, and

HOETTL entrusted to him the full direction of his intelligence group.
Subsequently, KERNMEYER separated himself from HOETIL and commenced to
intrigue against him. He made reports sgainst HOETTL and gave these to
the state police and the Ministry of the Interior and maybe also to CIU,
T don't know. HOETIL knew about this for a long time but he never tried
to stop KERNMEYER. He only laughed sbout KERNMEYER's activity against
him. nqbehemruudhiainnmn«mmlwm. :

About his religious feéling-- I8 he & religious men, or does he not go
to church?

He is without religion.
But he is not an atheist?

=17 =
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No. He never participated in the Nazi persecution of Catholics.
And Jews?

I don't know, but I think Catholics he never did.

Is he a dspendable man?

Yes.

Do you think he has any chance of ever becoming importent politically
in Austria?

No. _

Who are his enemies as far as the gov;arnmant is concerned?
He is on friendly terms with State Secretary GRAF, amd...
Does he know GRAF personally?

Yes. )

Does he ever see GRAF in Vienna?

No, not in Vienns.

He probably does not go to Vienna very often.

Probably not. A

I mean, he probably does not travel over the demarcation line, so if he

meets GRAF, it must be down here.

He could have met ORAF at Salzburg, but I don't think he met him in
Vienna.

GRAF, you say, is & friend or acquaintance of his. -Who else does he
have who might protect him or help him politically?

GRAF, and KLAUS, and msybe FIGL. His connection with GRAF I know from
my intelligence wastkwas KARL VON WINKLER.

Who are his enemies? Who are the people who work against him? He seems

to be very friendly with the OeVP group, so that the Socialists could
be expected to work against him.
The VAU has not been friendly to him.
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Is he acquainted with KRAUS?

T don't know, but the VdU is against HOETTL since HOETTL was the sponsar
or the co-sponsor of the OBERWEISS talks, and the OBERWEISS talks were
intended to unite the Nazis with the OeVP.

Did WILLI HOETTL actuslly organize the OHERWEISS meeting or did he just
get credit for it?

One cannot say organize, but he mrticipated in the preparatory sessionse
He wasn't actually at the meeting, was he?

He was at Gmunden while the meeting took place at Oberweiss. That is
only five or six Kilometers from Gminden. In relation to my comections
with HOETTL, T forgot to tell you that when the OBERWEISS meeting was
being planned, I worked very closely with HOETTL, and I thought then
that he was working to bring the Nasis into the OeVP beeause I was
opposing the establishment of an independent VdU party because I was
afraid that it would becoms another Nazi party.

Well, it did; you were right. Was he very cooperative at that time?
Yes. i

Did he ever ask "Why are you 80 interested in this?"

HOETTL knew that I was interested in it because of my Catholic orienta-
tion and that I was for the OeVP and he took it for granted that I
would try to bring about a settlement favorable to the OeVP. °

Have you told HOETTL that you are going to0 leave here and that you are
going to Germany? .

Yes.

Has he indicated any interest in that?

No, he asked only that I should edit his second book on his intelligence
work regarding the £ifth colwm and the operation ZEPPELIN and that I
from time to time would edit his articles.

He wants you to continue on doing the same thing that youthave been doing
here? 7You are willing to do that?

Oh, the payment is good for me end the work is not too difficult and I
don't spend much time at it.

-19 -
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. And if you could get & job in Austria doing the same thing, would you
consider staying here? ’

it
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Are you looking forward now to your move to Germany? Do you think it
will be a very interesting experience?

Oh, I hope so, but I have to become oriented to the new position.
Do you have any friends there who can help you in that regard?

Editor-in-chief DR.%‘-%phon) is a friend of mine, and I have good &
connections with the German Catholics, especially the members of the
editors' association and publishing houses.

There is no chance that you will reconsider your intention of moving on
to Germany and stay here in Salsburg, is there?

To tell the truth, I would like to return to my previous profession, at
least for a couple of years, but I feel that I could do more for our
common purpose, to fight Communism, by returning to that profession.
Here I only have the possibility to edit reports which originate with
other persons. I cammot be active; I cannot be responsible; I cannot
be independent. )

You miss the sgtisfaction which you formerly received when you created
these reports yourself, is that it?

But if in the future the political intelligence is of importance to the
Americans again, then I would consider reemployment if the U. S. intelli-
gence wished it, and I would rejoin our group. I am on the closest and
friendlist terms with GROSSBAHN. I have appreciated my opportunity to
collaborate very highly and this was a very good time for me. I have

the wish to do more.

To do more in what regard?

More active journalistic work. My work for the Vienna publication wasn'g
gratifying enough since it only appears monthly and is then aimed at an
intellectusl and sophisticated level and I would like to write for a
widsr publice.

That is your own ambition then, in other words.

Yes.

Would that be probably the chief reason why you have been unhappy?

You can say that is the chief reason.




DECLASSIFIED Authority
NND 39210

Yes, but at present the outlook for that type of job in Austria is no
too good. ,

You mean that if such a thing could be arranged, you would congider
staying on here, working for some publication where you could write an
article every day, for instance? h

Sometime later, but for now, for the coming year, it's impossible.

Have you already signed & contract?

. T have signed a contract.

For how long?

For a half year.

And you wouldn't want to break that contract?
No, it would be an unfriendly act.

How about after a half a year? Would you consider that?

Yes, after a half a year I would reconsider.

But only on the terms that you would be given a chance to work more out
in the open on straight political reporting?

Yese.
Your desire is, then, to work in the journalistic field where you have
an overt office and you write your daily article and the people have &

chance to read it. You wouldn't object, with a set-up of this sort, to
some clandestine work in addition, would you? .

No.

Ts clandestine work disagreeabls to you?

Oh, a little. I have so many acquaintances and some have been asking me
"What are you doing," and in order to answer I must evade or male up

an untrue answer. T feel uncomfortable about this. But if it would be
possible to comnect clandestine work with overt activity in a way that
makes the clandestine inconspicuous, I would be willing to do ite.

Has your wi® ever raised a question as to what you're doing with your

tims, and so forth?
-21 - M

SECRET
SECURITY INFORMATIOR




TN A M A G

C:

C:

D2

C:

My wife is an intelligent woman. I have never told her what I‘am doing
in Salzburg, but she probably guesses that I am engaged in some type of
clandestine work....clandestine work, or something unusual.

In comparison to what you were doing befare the war?
Yes. Before the war I was a journalist.

You had your name in the paper and now you don't have your name in the
paper.

Yes. But my wife has not influenced me. For a long time I have con-
sidered the problem of my future, but I repeat that I would return to i
intelligence work if my working conditions were changed to a political- i

type activity.

Yes--if it could be arranged that you would be working as a political
journalist in the open?

Yes, in the open, and besides I could collaborate, because I am convinced
that such work is very important and will grow increasingly more important
i€ a state treaty is signed. But I am not familiar with military
matters.

m, I see.

ImarecruitintheGermanairforceforoneyurandIsemdina

commission unit, so I am unacquainted with military matterse.

Well, I think that we understand each other, and we'll let the thing go
at that. If I have a few additional questions that I may think of I'll :
let GROSSBAHN know that I want to see you again, and we can make iy
arrangements to hold smother discussion tomorrow. I want the information H
that you have conveyed to me to go into your file; it will be the last :
chapter in your book for the time being. Then in the future if you
change your mind about intelligence work or we have the kind that you
are looking for, we can call upon you or send a representative to you. }
Tt seems to me your future lies here in Austria. Your friends are

here, your contacts are here, and your interests are here. ¥ou're an

Anstrian after all, not a German.

T intend to return to Austria after two years at the utmost.
Tt will be difficult now for you to see your family at all, won't it?

Oh, my family will move to Germany with me.
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Dt Isn't that rather expensive? :
’ !
C: The publishers will pay the expenses. 1 ; —
|
I D: How about your children? 'mey're in school now, aren'y they?
5 Cs Yes. That was a difficult problem because the German achoola run on & ’3
! different schedule, but it must be done’. It will be very good for my i
i“ son to experience learning under another school system. i
£ D:  Is he a pretty smert boy? }I o .
. C: Yes. He is sixteen years old. ! =2 Z
- ' il
D:  Where is he studying now? |
- C:  In high school, and my dmughter is at Vienna Uninrsity. She intends <] -
E - to go to the United States for one year on & scholarship. 3
: !
- Ds Is that the Fullbright Scholarship? ;
P C: fqa- ‘
'D:  She must speak English.
) C: Yes, she speaks English.
: “-Dv | Has she been interviewed here by the committee and passed already? .
mi’mmm- 2 ; a4 " ,
& ; :
o Dz That's a great honor and & wonderful opportunity. 8o she w:l.ll leave ’
next year?.
{ Ct  Yes, next year. She will leave before Christmes or in the t.u.
: 1 g
i v D:  Well, Dactor; I sppréciate the time thit you have spent. If I think
3 otmloreqnestiom]?'ﬂlletyonum
e
: .
= i
SECURITY “RMATICR
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Second Sitting: 29 January 1953
D: As I told you yesterday, I looked over my notes and reviewed in my
mind what we had been talking about, and a few questions that were
not clear in sy own mind came up. I figured if they weren'y clear to
§ me, they would not be clear to someone in Headquarters who would
: read your file, so I would liks to go over that ground again.
You made a statement that since 1952 you had been preparing political
sumaries for Mr. HOETTL. What type of information went into those
summaries?
E C: They were press reviews. . I took the papers of the past month and I
’ made an extraction from them in order to form a view on the essential
“ proceedings in internal politics in Austria. These included no:special
information except what I knew from friends, but the essentisls were -
taken from the press.
_T Dz Do you have any examples or copies of these reports?
~ Cz2 No, I wripte it by hand.
D: Do you write all of your things by hand?
: Cz Most of them. I am not accustomed to writing with a machine.
e D: 8o’ you wrote these political summaries based upon ahtamnta of press
e items which you had read?
0.7 Yeos.
D: . What papsrs did you reviev in order to prepare them?
. Ct ‘The Vienna Presse, Salzburger Nachrichten, and Arbeiter iaitu_ng. '
D: -What was Mr. HOETTL's particular interest in these summaries? Did be .
_gin you any direction along the line?
g No direction. He merely said, "You &re scquainted with Austrisn
politics and you will know what is essential and what is not."
Dz And what was Mr. HOET:L going to do with these aumrias?
Ot He said that he would send them to the editor of the Soldatsn _m
D: You have mentioned that HOETTL was the mpnaentntive of a Germsn
i newspaper. What paper was that?
i (¢}] The Deutsche Soldaten Zeitung; their offices are located at Munich.
ottt - ~ ?“‘ ;
; SECURITY INFORMATION
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D: That is the paper for which he worked here? And he was taking your i
statements and he was sending them to the editor of the Deutsche .
Soldaten Zeitung? s
C: Oh, I guess, but I don't kmow.
D2 Did you ever read the Deutsche Soldaten Zeitung?
C: Occasionally; it is not a paper of my choice. . h S 7 ;
D:  Did you ever see anything which you wrote in that paper? | T ’ /

C: No, except one time. Once I had written an article for HOETTL, a
réview of politics during the past year, and that was published.

D: On one occasion? Did he call that to your atﬁonticn, or did you
discover that by yourself?

C: No, I discovered it by chance at a news vendor's stand. Ch, I can
probably guess why you are asking me these questions and I have ideas
of my own. T suspected that he made other use of these reparts.
Dz mtl did you suspect?
C: T suspected that he submitted these reparts to & Bomn office. :
Dt An intelligence office? '
C: No; I think rather a foreign office.
D:  The Bonn Foreign Office?
C: Yes, this I did suspecte '

Dt To whom there? Amyone in particuler? Anyone with whom you know he was "
in contact? : §

C: He never mentioned any names but I guess it was the official in charge
of Austrisn matters, and I sppreciated the possibility to bring my '
‘views to the sttention of that official in Gérmany, which probsbly
were not known to him. I felt that the reports submitted to that of-
ficer by others were not as objective and as complete as mine.

D:. Did you consider your report as restricted information?
Ct No. It could have been published at any time.
213 Could it have been published in Austria?
R o

s 5
SECURITY INFO™**TION ;
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Ct (Did not understand question.)
Dz Would you have been willing to publish them here under your own name?
Ce Probably not, because I wrote frankly--too frankly for political tac-

tics.
D: You oriticised what was going on, from the standpoint of pointing out :
what should be dome to correct undesirable trends? ; o
C:  Partly. e :

Dt And would that have been embarrassing to you if it had come out here?

=4 ' Ct No, it wouldn't have been embarrassing--except for one fact. I didn't
’ dnlinnfriendhnmmrvlﬂxm‘nm.ﬁmm,ihandonotuh.

D2 You had the feeling taat Mr. HOETTL might have been using this information
. for some other reas.n than that which he expressed. Did you ever ask
_hir about that? '

. cr N, I didn't.

D: mdmonrunhnmtitmmusulmtymuuclsuddm
appear regularly in the Soldaten Zeitung?

C:  No. HOETTL said that even if the articles were not published in the
peper; they would still be valuable as background infarmation for the
editors and that my articles could be used as a brief for ths prepara-

tion of other news ataries.

Dz By HOETTL?

Ce ¥o, by the editars of the Soldaten Zeitung. But I will tell you at
vhat time I first suspscted that my articles were not going to the
Soldaten Zeitung. It was after KERNMEYER had taken the job of Salzburg
Tepresentative of the Soldaten Zeli away from HOETTL and HOETTL

fdlodfnintomuth_ﬂﬁm needed my reports for the _
3 - 8oldaten Zel . I did not ask him sbout this matter but T concluded

Dt  How was HOETTL outmaneuvered by KERNMEYER? How did KERMMETER take
HORTTL's job away? )

(o] KERNMEYER is now the editor of the Soldaten Zei , in Munich, and
KERMMEYER intrigusd agéinst HOETTL by claiming that HOETTL had used
his influence to get the Germans to agree upon reparations for the Jews

“ - 28 -
| i
e SECRET )
", SECURTTY 1t TINW 3
R At e e A AN 4 4 N SR Mt A 0 I R e st T T m :

DECLASSIFIED Authority
NND 39210



e e | A e e S e

DECLASSIFIED Authority
NND 39210

C:
D2

C:

Dz

Ct

Ce

Dz
" Csz

D:

Cs

.Dl

because HORTTL had at one time made a report on the number of psrsms
who had been murdered by the Nasis.

When did HOETTL lose his job with the Soldaten Zeitung?
July 1952.

You started to contribute these to HOETTL early in 1952. Now, after
HOETTL lost his job with the Sowundzg%, you continued to con-
tribute reports to him. What explanation HOETTL givwe you as to the
altimste destination of your summaries?

He made no explanation because I didn't ask him for one.

mtjuuwro satisfied in your own mind that if your reports were not
going to the Soldaten Zeitung that - they were going to Bonn or to some
other recipient whom you sey HOETTL did not identify to you; is that
correct?

Yes.

What were your thoughts in the matter?

T felt a little uncomfortable, but I decided to continue submitting the
Npom.

Why? Did you need the money?

The money was one of the reasons, but not the main reason. The main
reason was that I hoped that my reports would be of use for Austria.icy

‘pid HOBTTL ever tell you how your information was regarded? Did he

ever ssy that it was considered to be very good or exceptional?

oOh, very good.

Did he ssy that he ‘considered it to be very good or that thc person
or persons sho ultimately received it considered it to e very good?

He said it. Bue he only paid me for these reports untdl October 1952.
You started to give him these reports in December 1951. That was a
review of the political situation 4n Austria, and that article was
published in the Soldaten Zeitung.

Yea.

Be geve you 600 schillings for that?
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Yes.

How did he coms to make an offer to you in this regard? Do you
remember?

He said that he could not prepare this correspondsnce for the Soldaten
Zeit and he would pass over to me part of the salary if I

ost write the monthly reports for him.
That was the beginming of your relationship? In December 1951 you
prepared the first report? And then thereafter every month you sub-
mitted a repart until July 1952?

The reports were paid until July of 1952 and from then on I sent him
the reports without receiving pay.

Could you afford to do that? Through August of 1952 they were paid?
Yes. i
Why did you continus to do =07

Out of friendship.

Did you feel obligated to him?

Yes.

In wvhat way were you obligated?

- The work which I did in the last few months was something which I did

for myself anyway, not necessarily to be published or to be sold, but
just for my own kmowledge and for my own use, in order to keep myself
su courant with the local political situation. It wasn'y much trouble
and very little work.

hen in July 1952 KERRMEYER took the Soldaten Zeitung job away from.
HOETTL? »

T don't recall exactly, but I think it was July or Augusi.
Of last year?
Yes.

Andf:o-ﬂutpointonmcontimadtoginmﬂunnm,ﬁﬂ.oh
you presumed were going to somebody in Germany.
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C:
D:
C:
Dt
Cs

Cs
Dz

C:

D2

Ce

Dz

C:

Yes.

But you're sure that ROETTL never told you whom they were going to?
Yos, I am sure. )

hmmtﬂdmmwwtmﬂ

No.

And youa never asked him?

No. _

As far as you're concermed, then, HGETTL could have been giving these
reparts to the Kommandatura in Vienna and you wouldn'y have known
anything sbout it. Is that right?

No. I couldn't supposd that HOETTL woul” deliver any material to the
Russims.

It could have gone from HOETTL to somebody in Germany snd then to the
Bussians.

" (Due to techpical difficulties the next two minutes did not record,

but it is recalled that CC-2 sppeared shocksd by the idea that his
reports could have reached the Russians, as = =1 had suggested.)

(CC<2 was then queried on the source of the rew information used in
his political summaries. After stating that he did not use any in-
formation which reached his hand as a result of his work for GROSSBAHN
in these statemsnts, he was quissed again on this point.)

You are sure that none of the information which went into these re-
ports cams from CROSSBAHN's statements?

I sm sure that I intentionally did not include any information of that
sort but unintentionally one or the other detail which coincided with
my own ideas was placed in a political summary.

You never intentionally extracted information from reports which cams
to you from information received from GROSSBAHN's apparat? You never
did that? You are guite sure? )

Exoept once. Once I gave HOETTL details on KAUTER-KLATT. This in-
formation came to me from police contacts and I informed GROSSBAHN
about this matter.

-2 - - Wﬁ
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Cs
D:

C
Ds
C:
Dz

C:

D2

C:

" Dt

Cs
D2

C:
D1

C:

Ct
Dz

as
You informed him before you gave HOETTL the statement?

Yes, before.

Is there any other similar information which you might have extracted
from MROSSBAHN's apparat?

Noe
Are you quite sure?
Yes.

Why didn't you tell GROSSBAEN that you were getting 600 schillings
a month from HOETTL for preparing & monthly political summary?

I counsidered the affair pertaining to my regular collsborations. in
journalistic matters. It was a private thing.

You informed GROSSBAHN you received money for editing newspeper
articles and editing WILLI's book, and that is certainly a private
enterprise.

Maybe it was an error of mine that I didn't inform GROSSBAHN.

Is there any reason why you hesitated to tell CGROSSBAHN? Did you
think he might not have spproved of that?

- Magbe.

mmthinkthltmssmnd@tnothawmdmtomptm
monthly susmaries?

T don't think so, but possibly he might have felt that way.

You must have had some reason for not telu.ng him because, after all,
you're a good friend of GROSSBAHN and you've told him sbout a lot of
things :

Yos, but I dica't tell him about each srticle that I wrote for
HOETTL. He knew that I collsborated with HOETTL in journalistic
matters but I didch't inform him on the details of my collaboratione.
This is something which had been going on for almost two years—
Not two years; one year.

December 1951 to 1952--yes. You're sure there was no intentional
reason for withholding that information?
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| ;
! Ct No. '
1
i D: Was there anyone else for whom you were preparing summaries on a
i regular basis?
Ct No. HOETIL was the only man who was giving me money for doing
editing work. Sometimes I wrote articles for the Vienna press and I
edited 8 book for a Stuttgart publisher. )
Dt But there was no cne who gave you a steady salsry for preparing -
political reports or any other kind of reports? il
(+}] No.
!/ ‘ -
K i D: Did you tell anyons sbout the lie dstector test to which you were
i : submitted?
s % c:  ¥o.
Dz _Are you gure?
C: Yes.
D:  Are you sure that you didn't tell HOETTL sbout that?
Cs Yes. v
D:  How could HORTTL hawe found out that you had taken a lis detector |
tent?
| “ 0t . He found it out?]
‘ Dt - Yes, he did. How could he have found it out?
‘ (CC~2 thought.about this for some seconds but made no response.) ¢
e Dt Did you tell THEODORE ALEERT about it? ‘ L
bioes C: I don't know THEODORE ALERRT personallys . L
= et D:  Didyou tell MAST sbout it?
. C: No.
" D1 Did you tell VON WINKIER about it?
5 ) .
. C:  No. I never see VON WINKLER.
: .
"‘- -3}
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Dt Did you tell KARL HASS about 1t?

(Thie name had to be repeated and finally spelled for cC-2.
He drew a complete blank on the name and from all appearances

was sincere in stating that he had never heard this name or 3
‘Jmown an individual bearing this name. The question on HAAS A
‘ was buried in a series of names in an effort to entrap cc-2 !
f ; into adwitting that he had discussed the lie detector subject !
with HAAS.) o
i H - h
! Dt Did you tell your wife about it? I &
E o |
L C:. - Fo, but my wife could have guessed that I had a difficult week |
; ! . when I took the lie detector test. My wife asked me what I had :
] been doing in that week and I merely told her.that T had been LA i -
L enigaged in a difficult conference. I made no referance to the 3
L i tezt. !
= f R ;1 Did you ever talk sbout the machine? i
‘ » , i
; 1 M. 5
! , o
D1 pid you tell anyome in ROHRACHER's office about it?  Or anyone
. in KLAUS's office? v : Y
(0C-2 thought about both of these questions before replying in ]
the negative.) ‘
D+ Or HEREERT KRAUS?
. Gi  ¥o, T am not scquainted with KRAUS.
Dt Are you quite sure that younnever mentioned anything to ‘snyone about 1 F
: the machine? ’ i i
< R I never menticned anything to anyone about the machine. i
e _(cC-2 reflscted upon- the question a moment and added ‘*Tt was quite e | 3 A
23 {mpogsible.”) . : : . - o3
gt D Dz You don't talk in‘your sleep? . ‘ i 44
| e i (thughs) T don't imow. : g
©° . D+ And you sey that you haven't seen HARRY MAST in a half a year?
C: Yes.
_ -3 - : .
s SEC-RET f ) e g EK :
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SESRILY TR MATICN
D: Would you please review the history of your relationship with
: MAST?

Ca There really isn't any history. I became acquainted with MAST '
through HOETTL, and I believe it was at Bad Ischl or Bad Aussee
in a cafe. Then I met MAST once or twice in a train when we
traveled to Aussee in a train. ’

i D: By accident?

Cs Yes, by accident. My connections with MAST were merely super- P o
ficial. : o

D: Ts that the entire extent of your relations with MAST? -

i C: Yes. I only saw him three or four times, but I had the impression

: ! he was & man who boasted that he knew more than he actually did, and i

PN , I don'y care for such people.

D: Why did HGETTT introduce you to MAST? i

‘Gt I'ad an sppointment to meet HOETIL to discuss an article that ‘
was to be published, and when I arrived at the cafe MAST was seated i
‘at & table reserved for HOETTL.

D1 So it was an intentional meeting arranged by HOETTL?

c: T don'y knows T don't believe it was becanse MAST left the talle
after a short timee

| b 3 : D2 Yes, but don't you see? You had arranged a meeting with HORTTL |
: : at a cafe. You come to the cafe and HOETTL has a table reserved. . I
| g’ : _Mr. MAST is sitting at the table. Mr. MAST is a friend of HOETTL's.:-
| A A Didn'y it sppear to you that that was a staged meeting, that
i : : HOETTL wanted you to meet MAST? b

< ik Tt might have been possible.
Dr . What did you talk about on that occasion?

TR0 (Thinks sbout this one for a while.) Oh, the political situstion i o
7 el : and HOETTL's friends, regarding HOETTL's publishing house, and: ‘ :
5 ““the receipts from royalties. They were not intelligence mattere.

D: ‘And on the other occasions you merely chanced to meet MAST on the |

.".;_-.," bt 2
| | train E
-33- . ;{
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Yes.

\

Nhnlgom‘/tomﬂmm at the same time that you were?

I &n't know. I was going to visit my femily and I don't kmow where
MAST was going. - .

Did he mention anything sbout his destinaticn to you?

Bo. I walked through the train, I was looking for a seat, and I
noticed MAST sitting in one of the trains snd I sat down beside
him to talk for a few wimutes. .

Bat you never discussed any intelligence matters on these occagions?

Bo. MAST was then concerned over HOETTL's welfare because he
wmmm@trmwmwnmtyumm

Austrisn police because of his intelligence activity. I told -~

MAST that there was nothing to worry about since this activity ]
wasan't agalast the Austrian or American interests, and MAST dropped
That is the essence of one of the conversations?

Yeso )

Caa you recall what the essence of the other conversation i_lu?

No. (Thinks sbout this for a while.) -

Did you say that you knew THEODOEE ALEERT or the’ you didn'y luow

I have never seen hinm. Ineiiwdgtqiap!;om call once from him

which I reported to GROSSBAHN.

¥as that 4in. relationship to a money iaturé ’

Yoso

The last money exchange matter? '

Yes, in IM's.

And did he give you the money?

No. Imtausmgertohhmdinthiamlreoeindtha

" German marks. . I had no interest to become acquainted with hime

s 3 M
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C:

Dt

o

Dz

C:

Dt

'c-

C:

CI

Ds

-Cs

* pid you ever tell GROSSBAHN that WILLI was trying to find out
_ about your connection with the Americans? -

Yes. I repeatedly told hime. Fpom the begimning I discuwesed these
matters with him, and twice HORTTL asked me to greet GROSSBAHN.

Twice he asked you to greet GROSSBAHN?

Yos, snd ¢nce he asked me if T believed that he and GROSSBARN

could enter into an agreement of peutrality (sic),

Did he feel that GROSSBAHN was en enemy of his or was angry with
him? '

No. CROSSBAHN did not approve of him and he wouldn'y take up
contact with him. -

Did you tell HOETTL that? Did you 4611 him thatBOROSSBARN had no
interest in seeing him? FE

No. HOETTL realized this from the fact that I never brought up
the subject. "

Yesterdsy you mentioned that HORTTL did not suspect that you and
GROSSBAEN were collaboratinge -

Yes.

Now, doesn't it seem strange that you could belisve that and yet
still not realisze after HOETTL had asked you four or five times
about GROSSBAHN--what GROSSBAHN was doing and so forth—-that
HOETTL might have suspected you worked together?

HOETTL Inew that GROSSBAHN and I were scquaintsd md he knew that
GROSSBAEN lived in the same town, at Altamnster, and therefore

he supposed that I met GROSSBAHN from time to time, but he never

said snything directly sbout my collsborstion in intelligence matters:
with GROSSBAHN. ;

Bat Ayet he suspected that you worked for the Americens?
Yese.

And you belisve that he vas pretty sure in his own mind sbout
that? : A .

Yes.
- 35 - . ) : m
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C2

D2

[+}

" D2

C:

Dz

C:

Dz
C:

D2

Cs

L7 U S

You mentioned yesterday that HOETTL asked you several times, or
indicated to you, that he knew that you were working for the
Americans, and you didn't answer him directly, which could have
given WILLI reason to believe that what he suspected was trus.

Yese.

On the other hand, WILLI indiceted to you that he knew that
GROSSBAHN was in touch with the Americans?

Yes.

He knew that you two were acquainted. Don't you think that he
is a clever enough man to have deduced that you worked together?

It's possible--probably he dide.
What is your opinion?

My opinion is that he probably knew it--not merely assumed it
but I believe that he didn't learn this from me, and I believe
it not from what HOETTL uidbntkutbencthr
doubt had been informed of ovur rela about the
"@ organisation and sbout my collaboration vith GROSSBAHN for

this group.

You feel that WILLI knew that you and GROSSBAHN had worked to-
gether at one tims in intelligence- nmrﬁ,ﬂhnd learned this
mtmmm&mwaddhtmmngmuhcmtm
MANDEL or AUNER.

More probebly from MANDEL, becsuse HORTTL and MANIEL are still on
; Mnd];hmmdthhadco]lﬁbor‘toddnﬂngfheluien.

MMNrukmbumhmymnnuldng?

No. I never told him that my financial conditionm rather good.
On the contrary, he believed that my financial eondition WaS poore

You think he really believed that?
Yes. T don't think that WILLI was informed on the extent of my .

collaboration with the Americans and wikh GROSSBAHN. He believed,
I assume, that I was only an unimportant collaborator.

- 36 -
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"Dr

Ct

Ct

Do you think that he could have believed that thése summaries which
you were handing over to him were based on work which you were doing
for the. Americans?

/
No. T am sure that these reports were harmless.

And-yet WILLT considered them very good? _
That could be 80, because they werk based on informetion which I

gathered from my own political friends and from my special knowledge
of Austrian political matters, but the swmmaries could be published

in any paper.

Hhen_yw talk about political friends, whom do you mean?
PROFESSOR MAUER, KLAUS, SCHULMEISTER, PEYSENDORFER (phon)
ANTON FELLMER? o

FELLNER wasn't a political friend of mine; m.mm was my collabo=-
rator.

You never used any of FELLNER's material in reports to HOBTIL?
T

How about GLATZER?

T never met GLATZER.

How about the information received from him? Could that have been
incorporated in the monthly political summaries?

1

Ho.

What other frisnds do you remember who were the sources for in-
formation vhich went into your political suwmmaries?

(thinking) MAUER, SCHULMEISTER, KLAUS, PETSENDORFER.....
Did you introduce HORTTL %o, KIAUS? '

ios,' I tried to support HOETTL's reqm'st for ammesty.
And was that successful?

Yes. KLAUS and GRAF were the political sponsors of the act.
WUEHRER (phon) was the orgeniser of the psutm.

s
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SECURITY INFORMATION

What does WUEHRER do for a living?
He works in Vienna.

I just thought of another interesting name. TYou had spoken about
this TARAS BORODAJKEWICZ. In looking through a file I came across
an interesting reference. Did you know that BORODAJKEWYCZ had
been in touch with a PROFESSOR LEO STERN?

Yes, I reported this information to GROSSBAHN.

Dt Do you know who PROFESSOR STERN is?

7 4 : Cz Yes, I reported it.

‘ ) ' Dt That he had been a lieutensnt colonel in the Soviet Army?

‘ . : : Cs Yes, T know it.

Dz Didn't that make BORODAJKEWYCZ suspect in your eyes?

c; Ch yes, it made him suspect in wy eyes.

D: What is your opinion of BORODAJKEWYCZ now?

C: I believe that he has lost his cormection to the Russians because ) %3
he is no longer holding a scholarship which had been granted by - !
the Russians to him and under which he conducted research in the I
state archives files abont Austro-Soviet diplomatic correspondence !
prior to World War II. : .

‘Dz Didn't it seem strange to you that the Sovists would give & scholar- 8 ' i
uhipwumuhmnome,muaremgeetwnthoSoﬁd; Al
Union?

C: He is not a refugee from the Soviet Union. His father had been ) I
2 nstive of the Ukraine and had been an Austrian official and later S
served with the German civilian affairs administration of the
- Carpatho-Ukraine when this territory had been conqueréd by the
.Germans «

D: And wh&t':ls BORODAJEEWYCZ's history during the war?

Cs He was a professor of modern history at Prague. _ i
| Dt Where does he live how? :

ik

DECLASSIFIED Authority
NND 39210



C2

Dt

In Vienna.

And he is supposed to have had & scholarship. Was that scholar-
ship from the Russians? D1d he receive it through PROFESSOR
STERN?

Fo, by way of PROFESSOR ETMARD WINTER. WINTER is an old friend :
of his. WINTER is a professor of church and Eastern Slovene :
history. WINTER aso_befriendedfby STERN and so he arranged the i
connection between and STERN. WINTER was the
intermediary. BORODAJKEWYCZ never made any gecret of this connection i
to the Russisns. There are other professors who also received i~
Russian scholarships--for instance, BRUNNER (phon). :
What department is he in? The history department? -
Yes. He is a former Nasi. He was fired from the university in ‘

1945 and then waé rehired, and while he was unemployed he probably

accepted the scholarship from the Russians.

Are there any others that you can remember? ‘

No. T remember only the two names BORODAJKEWYCZ and BRUNNER.

You reported those to GROSSBAHN? "

Ch yes, I believe in 1950. I think that for the past two years
BORODAJEEWYCZ no longer has a comnnection to the Russians. .

You think that you can do business with the Rnuma.md then,
while you're living in Viema, just ssy that you're finished wvith
them? Do you think that is possible?

(looks doubtful)

You know what & Russian scholarship amounts to, da't you?

(no response)

When you receive a scholarship from the Russians you sign up to do
some intelligence work for them. :

That was my suspicion.

You suspected then that BORODAJEEWICZ was engaged in intelligence
work for the Russians?

Yese.

Al
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And you think that he has stopped that? Do you really believe
that?

Yes.
You're a smart man, you know.

It's difficult to say. I have seen him a number of times in the
past few years.

Where did you see him, in Vienna?

No no, mostly in 8alzburg, when he was traveling from Salsturg to
Germany, where his main interest was. to gain membership in the new
East Buropean Institute in Munich.

He was interested in that?

Yes-~headed by JOZEF HANS KOCH--and he intended to become a member
of this institute, but he failed to be accepted.

Wy did he fail? Could it have been political bu:kground?
Tes, but I was never informed o it

How often have you seen him in the last four years? Let's say in
the last two years, approximately.

Approximately eight or ten times.

And where did you ususlly meet?

In a.Salsburg restsurant or cafe,

And what did you talk about?

The political situation, -ntmq friends.

Did he ever ask you about GROSSBAHN?

Ko »

Did he ever ask you about HORTTL?

No, because he and HOEm..igintun & correspondence .relationship.

He doean'y lmow enything about GROSSBAHN, I doubt whether he has
ever heard his name,

-lp -
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D2 Did you ever prepare any statemente for BORODAJKEWYCZ?
Ce No.

i D: Did he ever make any remarks indicating that he kmew you were earning
! money for doing work other than your overt journalistic activity?

Ce No. He believed that I was the Sglzburg representative for
HERIER. ) “ i o =

D: Can you remember how you happened to meet BORODAJKEWYCZ back in |- E
1936 or 1937% Who introduced you? — &

C: BORODAJKEWYCZ was formerly & journalist student leader at the
University of Vienna, and he and I were interested in the same

B i 3 student organisation. We occasionally participated in msetings

. : . together, so I knew him from my university days. For a while

¥ BORODAJKEWYCZ was a member of my university lodge. He then changed -, 1z !
’ S 4 over to the history faculty.

D2 When did you resume contact with him after the end of World War II? !

Cs: IsashntortbsmntmmUanIwrbdmumu !
editor of a weekly publication.

Dz What did you talk about?

iz C: He asked me sbout my job in Vienna and other pu'aonnl mtters.
! ) At that time I did not know that BORODAJKEWYCZ was in contect with
{ the Russians. I learned this later on.

D2 Who informsd you of that? : .

C: DR. SCHULMEISTER, co-editor of Wort und Wahrheit, told me that a
suspicion existed. He is very well aocquainted with a lmrge number
of people in Vienna and had heard of BORODAJKEWYCZ's schi 5
and his-comnections to PROFESSCR ETMARD WINTER and maybe to STERN : !
-and from then on I tried to collect information on BORODAJKEWYCZ's
operations without having much success.

o o i

Dt . You tr:lad on his operations? You have mentioned that he was work- &
ing at the state archives. What other operations were there? P i

Cs BORODAJKEWYCZ is a very active individual. From morning to evening : ]

! ‘ i
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Ct

Dz

he has callers at his home, and I was interested to know who these
people were, but I was unable to find out much about them.

Did SCHUIMEISTER ask you to inform him on BORODAJKEWYCZ 's friends
and gcquaintances?

I don't understaad. -

Why did you become interested in BORODAJKEWICZ's contacts and
friends?

Because I was then already working for GROSSBAHN. I learned much
about BORODAJKEWYCZ' snd his activity from the reports which came
from the SSPCEMREK (phon) group. GFAKEARENs reports on BORODA-
JKEWYCZ came to GROSSBAHN and they were collected in-a file.

Doesn't it strike you as odd that a man like BORODAJKEWICZ, who
was in touch with the Sovists, nsn'ttryi.ngtoﬁ.ndoutwbatyon
were doing for the Awmericans?

He never endeavored to find out. He asked me what my job was and
I gave him the usual cover story. He did not insist on any ex- .
planation. Maybe because we were good friends I suppose that he

did not tell the Russians about me.

And he knew that you were a friend of HOETTL's?

Yeseo

Did HOETTL ever say Wthing about BORODAJKEWYCZ?

. He has mentioned t.hat he has received letters from BORODAJKEWICZ

snd BORODAJKEWYCZ mentioned that he has received letters fron

. HOBTTL.

To your knowledge .do they visit each other?

"Ch yes, I'm sure that BORODAJKEWYCZ visits HOBTTL once or twice

a year. I have reparted informstion on BORODAJKEWICZ'=: contact
with HOETIL to GROSSBAHN.

Ikno" that. I am just trying to get the picture clear in my own-

- aind.

Do you remember the names of any other of the articles youmto
for HOETTL. You mentioned the GEISWINKLER article.

- Lp -
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Oh yes, I can remember--not all, but the principal ones: the
Commnist partisan organization in the Totes Gebirge,. there were
several articles on that; an article on what the former Nasi
leading figures are doing now; an article on a former employee
of SCHAUB (phon); on the discovery of HITIER's secret archives
(SCHAUS had given this inforviation to HOETTL); an article on

the last photograph of HITLER taken on the occasion of his last
birthday; an article on MUSSOLINI's diary.

And what did you receive for those articles?

HOETTL paid me different sums. I said yesterday about 600
schillings; I think it was between 300 and 800 schillings. b5 4
an article on which I worksd wasn't publishéd, he nevertheless
paid me for my work.

You said yesterday it might have been even a thousand schillings.
Yes, it could have been even & thousand.

Not more than that? Not two thousand?

Nd_y : HOETTL's payments to me were combined ones and usually in-
clpded money for my share of the royalties, for newspaper articles

_which I wrote, and my salary for the monthly politicsl summaries.
‘ So_that sometimes it could have been as much as two thousand

schillings for the month on' the basis of the fact that you were
getting paid fcrtheth:'eqtypesotmlﬂ .

Yes. ]
Were those schillings sent to you in cash, or didyﬁu havp to
go&tpt)iebinklnddrnthemy? ’ £
They were sent to me in cash.

v

T hope you don'y mind that I review my notes; otherwise, I'1l

‘have questions after you have gone. We wWamt to help:you in“this

regard and clear up these questions. Incidentally, when are you
going to Koln? s 5 S . SR

T should leave on Sunday to confer with the editecr. incchief and
therefore I must leave on Saturday.

Saturdsy morning?

~
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When do you think you will be coming back here?

The middle of March.

March?

Yes, so if you.want I can visit you then.

I would appreciate t.hat if there are some other questiana \hidz
m:l:; You'll be in tonohnthGB&SBle Doyoakno'm :

DETEMANN ‘HAUS, EOLN.

Tt is a hotel?

Fo, it is the office buildinge
Ifyouwonldbeaokﬂndmdw&totomossmml,wcovldnetfu‘
maybe two hours if there is any reason to. T hope we can cover
everything this time. Isyournfegoinguithywmﬂ
mwitevilljoinninm-

uhteaathatf

It won'yg be pouibla to f:lnd & home befora then.

‘n:m Hm ever ask you about ‘other peopls who ni@t work: for the
'J.'ricm?

No.' Bo -asked me ;b_orut people who' did i.ntolligence work tor his

onm organisation and for ‘other organizations but he never ulnd
ms- about peoplo who work for the:Americans.

What: do yvn mean, for his ovn orgnnmtim?

GLMVAL, and other: agents who workad for H(ETIL'a oun. pm'poses.
Did he ask you about CANAVAL? ’ :
Yes.

Who. eloe was he interested in? Other mten.igenoe personnlitin?

- “5._'

v ~
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C: He asked me if I could give him information on GANAVAL, WINKLER, i
BEGUS, KAUDER-KLATT, PASENDORFER. I think that HOETIL was well ' |
informed on the persons who are working for t.he Americans in A :

Austria. s

|

|

i v
! ' Dt How about peonls who work for the British? or for the French?
| .
i C: He never asked me about them. - ML
| X

|

Dz Or the Soviets? : s -
; C: " No no, except BEGUS. '

! D2 Did he ever mention to you that Bononumrmz was connacbd vifh o
; the Sovists? s s -

C: HOETTL mentioned once or twice mtmmmzm mpected
of working for the Soviets and that. BORODAJKEWYCZ had besn in -
touch with WINTER and STEREN. He did not 1like this relationship .
butontheoﬂarhmdhemuﬂnngtomrlookitbomu
BORODAJKEWYCZ was an old friend.

AT

D: He never tried to find out from you who was working ror-cic?
Cs: He néver seemed to be interested in those thi.ngs ‘and;, moreover, 1 i = I
hehhsalfhadta'kedfarGIClndheprobuhlykne'quihtlot .
. ubouf. 'CIC employees. :
P Dt canyon réemember npproﬁmulyuhenyonmtmarmsr? % ‘ : '
: ' Ci In the middle of 1952. C i

< D3 Andthenyoumthmﬁioeonﬂwtrsinafterthat, andhaenot
‘ . nhinnowforhovlong?

‘:_{." d C: Oh, ‘four months.

Dz Ioummurota tohi.natlll?
C: so. ) _ - _

P You act as though you don't 1ike the type of mthnt HASL;;‘Q ;

*. 08 MAST is a -cockolora.
D I don't know that word. What does it mean?

g -
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4 man who talks too much and has too much imagination; not the
reliable individusl; a fake. He's an old intelligence man. Mgybe

'@ good technician, but I would never collabarate with him.

Did HORETTL ever introduce you or arrange for you to meet amy
other people whom you knew or suspected to be intelligence per-
sonalities 1ike MAST?

No. Once I had an sppointment to meet HOETIL inoa Salsburg cafe
and MAST was seated at the table with HOETTL and two unidentified
men. I didn't speak to any of the others and HOETTL left his
table to come to where I was and speak with me.

And he never told you who they were? Did he ever indicate that
bmuuhywto-etamomhemin&lsbnrg?

No. On twe or three occasions he nlonadmvhsnhemin
Salsburg and asked me to meet with him.

Mo, I mean did he ever want you to mset anyone?

Yes, he wanted ms to meet ALBERT for the momey transaction but I
didntt do so. _

That is the only case?

IM'tmtwmtmmmIdon'troel comfortable in
such company.

wmmmtumwnetammmptmﬂn
KLAUS incident? )

I can't recall anyone. (h,Ivonld].ihtowinngardto
the previous question that once he introduced me to acertain
DR. ROBERT KATCHINEA (phon) a 1. I didn't know that
I slready was acquainted with KA rrmthadvsthenI
worked in the Foreign Office. EKATCHINKA had then been subordinate
to ms. He subsequently received the post of Cultural Attache at
Zagreb. EKATCHINEA is an expert in searching for oil. I thought
that KATCHINEA oould now be exploited to supply information ‘on
isterdor? oil fields. I reported this to GROSSBAHN and I met
KATOHINEA somstime later and sounded him out to find out if he
were prepared t0 give us information. GROSSBAHN wasn't willing
to bave ms dewelop this contact with KATCHINKA because of his
afothptiin-that KATCHINEA was already working for HOETTL.

=l »
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D:  And it looksd as if HOETIL was trying to feed you one of his men? -
Cs: Yes.

Dt You reported that to WSIBLHF?

_Cx Uh yes. Immediately and verbally.

i):_ Are thsre any other instances of that sort?

Gl No. % . Lo

[
‘ e D: Was this a voluntery proposition on HOETTL's part? How did the
; ; ‘ 2 subject come up? : ; _
i
l

: (1% HOETTL did not offer me the man but on my own initiative I thought
| that we could use him because we needed information on Zisterdorf i
! and T thought: that KATCHINKA could deliver us the information .
| we wanted but when GROSSBAHN and I reconsidered the use of
: TR EATCHINKA we decided that because of KATCHINKA's .comections with
L Foss HOETTL EKATCHINKA wasn't the right man for us and we dropped the
i matter. -

D:  But HOETTL didn't offer the man to you?

éi Hoe.

D:  What vas the reason for introducing you to KATCHINEA?
- Gz T think it was just a coincidence. KATCHINEA was waiting at the
e station atMug—Pnchbimuhm HOETTL and I were also waiting
to ‘take a train snd therefore the meeting could have been fully
) v accidentale
Dz On the other hand, did you ever introduce. anyone to HOETIL?
Cs No, except in the KLAUS case.
3 Dz That is the only one?
5 ¥ ' C: Yes.

Ds As a result of your dealings in currency for HOETTL, has anyons
ever tried to blackmail you in that regard?

Cz Hoe

D2 Humuﬁeﬁer&iedhobhchﬂlyoumthqmspecﬁdor
knew that you worked for the Americens?
- Ly - ) ; |

v

i
I
i
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C: Noe

Dz To use pressure on you?
C: No.

|
|
|
D2 Have you ever discussed with IR. SCHULMEISTER anything about your |
relationships with the Americans? ‘
C: Yes, but to say "discussed" is an overstatement. I once discussed !
employment with him and he wanted to lmow if I had another posi- :
tion in sddition to my job with the Herder publishing company. i
Iud.dthltIhldao-thilgtodovithﬁnAmricmhtIdid |
not say that it was intelligence. ‘

.“ 1.0 7 Dr  You told him that you had something to do with the Americams? ; _
Did he ask you what it was? . !

C: No, he didn't aske
Dt mmmmmumnmmcﬁdmtymwmdmgz .

C: Yes.

work?

D: He oould have suspscted that you were engaged in that tqpe of

C: T never admitted it and he never forced the matter.
D Did he just ask you that one tims or several times? |
C: h:lee-—attpebegiuni.ngotl&Slorl?S_O.,It'salouﬁuugo. :

D: How about the journalist MWUTHES Domknowljourngliat named : :
MAUTHE? ' : 1

C: Yes. Prior to the GROSSBAHN reorganisation we received regular |
press resumes from MAUTHE.

Dz And he Imew about your relationship to GROSSBAHN?

4 C: Yes. MAUTHE had been introduced to me by SCHULMEISTER. Iwas
. ];goldngtorlquﬂifiad-nmdrubdscammmtonmd
someone to me.
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He is a close friend of mine and the secretary-general of
Catholic Action. ”

Did he know about your work?

I don't know, but if he did learn of my contact it must have been
through SCHULMEISTER.

He could possibly know?
He could, possibly.
And how sbout DR. PHILIP METZLER?

Ob, the friend of IR. FELLNER. I never saw METZLER personally,
but he worked for us for a few months and gave us reports om
Communist activity, but GROSSBAHN had the impression that his re-
ports were not always true.

How about PROF. RASCHHOFER?

He is a former law professor in Prague. In Prague he was a con-
fidant of KARL HERMANN FRANK, the German adwinistrator, and at
the end of the war RASCHHOFER was srrested and interned here in
Salsburg. Then when he was released he engaged in local politics
and participated in the OHERWEISS mseting., Now GROSSBAHN has
told me he has taken up commections with OBERLANDER (fnu) and is
in his arganisation. I know about this connection to OBERLANDER
because he once invited me to meet that man who at that time had
declined an opportunity to emigrate to the Argentins, but I re-
fused his offer. RASCHHOFER had a contact in Bonn last year and
he is also interested in the East Buropean Institute which I men~
tioned to you in regard to BORODAJKEWYCZ.

'Is he a member of that institute?

Yes; I presume that he is the one who hindered BORGDAJKEWYCZ's
admi ssion. PR

Where did you see RASCHHOFER last?
About. three weeks ago here in Salsburg.
What was he doing here?

He came here allegedly only to speak to me. If it is true I don't

mowe.
Is he an inquisitive individusl?
- K} -
SECRET
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No. I am sure that he has no idea that I am working for the
American intelligence.

You are quite positive of that?

Yes.

Do you have any idea at all who could have repirted to HGETTL
on your activity with GROSSBAHN? That is why I'm bringing up
all your friends and acquaintances--to see which one it might
have been. y .

Only MANDEL.

But this report is a recent happening. It didn't happen two or
three years ago. It took place within the last half year.

-~ Who is there that you know and that WILLI knows who could have
hpld WILLI some factual details of your work for the Americans?

Factusl details?

Yes. We know that for a fact.

(He mulls this over in his mind for some seconds.)
You understand what I mean? '

Yes yes.

It's correct information; it was checked cut. That's what I'm
trying to get at, you see. You say you didn't tell WIILT...

Yes.

Whoéouldﬂnerehmboenvh_omwsmotﬂmﬂﬂngsmtyou
were doing and could have told him?

(Makes no reply.)
Itmthuebnntro-ammwhokmvthatmveroworki_ngtcw
the Americans andalso-holmnlppronnatehhwmchmqm
were getting from HOETIL for this politieal information.
(Mmualmgpmaewhupcc-zminhmamrforaooupla
of minutes.)

-SQ-
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D: "It couldn't be AUNER or MANDEL--they knew of your relationship
‘to the Americans as it existed some time ago. "I am referring to
recent informatione. y

(Another long pause.)

vy C D: Can you think of anybody at all who could have revealed some of
; : these details to WILLI? You see, we know that GROSSBAHN and s )
- WILLI have no contact whatsoever. The third person in the complex | o= P
is yourself. We know that WILLI knows scme of the detailsg--not i : I I
too many--but enough, so that he knew of your recent relations —— ;
with the Americans. He couldn't have concocted this information
in his head; he couldn't have invented it. The person who is o
7 . reporting made several statements. Each one was check out and -
. found to be true. . : .

(CC-2 appeared to pick his brain in an effart to discover some
acquaintance who could have acted as an informant for HUETTL.)

. Ds Doyauhanaxvgoodpemmﬂfriendauhmmt&hintom
confidenee?

C: No. I haw only had discussions with FELLNER, but FELLNER has no
direct comnection with HOETTL. _ !

D2 Is FELLNER the only one whom you talkadtoabuityuurotﬁchl i
contact? - ;

C: And my -policeman contacts.

D2 What contacts?

. 08sT
C: winr(phon), MOLNAR (phon). I contacted them a couple of months _
ago but I did not talk to them about this matter. » i

(Another long- pause while CC-2 dslihorates.)

D: You can't think of anyone? Hendidyvutellmabmm
lie dofcctor test?

. BE ¢ e’  T.eilive have b0 tall him abowt 44 becsans e Sock the test
b himself.

Dz Well, now, you didn't mention that to me before. Is there anyone ,
else? To whom else could you have mentioned it? You say you H
didn't tell your wife what had taken place but you told her that i

- 5= |
SEC ' |
SECTY e - ﬂ,e() ;
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you had a difficult conference.

(¢}] My wife probsbly has no idea that a lie detector exists.

D2 Who else is there in the same category with whom you might have
discussed the matter?

’ ., Ct I discussed the matter that a 1lie detector existed in general
terms but not in reference to myself with SCHUIMEISTER, but without
going into any details and no reference to my own experience.

7 D: I am just as mfaresﬁd in instances like that, if you ever
. discussed the subject in a general way. In the past six nontbs
% with whom did you discuss the subject?
: C: With SCHULMEISTER, with FELLNER. .

Ds Are you sure you didn't discuss it in general terms with HOETTL?

Cst. » In general terms, maybe.

Ds: After all, you met HOETTL quite often and you must have discussed
a few things besides the political summaries.

C¢ - Oh, political au-uriss, they were nothing secret. I discuased
this matter in general terms with HOETTL, who said that he had ex~-
perience with the lie detector at the Lambach CIC.

Ds Was HOETTL a participant himself in a lie detector test?

Ct Yes, at the headquarters of this group in Lambach the CIC -used sush -
a naeh:lm.

D2 So he knew about the machine? Could he describe it?

Ct (Shrugs his shoulders, indicating that HORTTL could do 80)

Dt You could describe this machine ( pointing to ome thst wes in a

_ corner of the room) just from looking at ite

C: I don't think so. I am so unuchnical minded that I conldn't
describe. the machine in half a year. -

D2 But you eonld describe the procedure involved in using the mechine
~=how the several pieces of equipment are attached to your bo§?

-5 -
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Yes, I could do that.
And HOETTL could do that, couldn't he?
No--it's ;moasible-

What's impossible?

That I have told sbout the machine and the questions that were
asked me.

I'm not talking about the questions; I just want to know because
thatvillbeabighelpinclaaringupfhe matter, you see. I
just want to kmow if you can recall discussing the subject of
the 1ie detector without going into any details on your own ex-
perience. -You have remembered that you have discussed it with
SCHULMEISTER once and with FELLNER oné timeo

And T think with HOETTL, I don't recall when.

You must have discussed it with him at some time because you
know that HOETTL saw & lie detector at Lembach. How long ago
was that?

July or August of last year.
You don't remember the circumstances?

Im quite surethatIdidnotmentipnAtﬂmumthatImaub-
jected to a test. :

One could have concluded that. Do you think that WILLI knows you
well enough so that he can read from your facial expressions the
enswers to some of his questions? For instance, in the case of
his queries to you about your work for the Americans, you nsver
expressly admitted that you did so, but on the other hand you
acknowledged that he could have dednced this from your reactions

to his questionse.

I cannot exclude this possibility.

No, I don't say that; I'm not holding you responsible for thate.
What I'm trying to get at is the truth in this whole thing, you
see. I want to find out the facts and the truth, that's all.

The human spirit is not designed to tell the untrue.
- 53 - i . . »
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You think so?
It is very difficult to say. ) %
Tt is difficult to say. I hope what you say is true.

T think that it is difficult for human beings to lie over a period
of time. p

Do you think so0?
Ch yes.

You give human beings credit for a lot more then I do. In sny
event, it is conceivable or very probable that you did discuss
the subject in general terms with HOETTL. Now let's carry.that
one point further. .Did you ever in general terms discuss
American intelligence with HOETTL? )

In general terms, yes.
What lines did your conversation follow?

For htm‘;tanoe, HOETTL told me about his CIC operations in Lambach
in 19kL9.

Did he identify to you eources and reports and did he give you
details on what he was doing?

No, because I already knew all of that information from our reports
which were then being collected by FELLNER. FELLNER was a member
of the Lambach CIC headquarters and T ‘translated his reports into
English, and so the story of HOETIL's .expsrience with CIC wasn't
new to me. One time HOETTL complained that he was out of favor
with the local CIC authorities and unfortunately found it impossible
to contact his old American friends who he had allegedly known
before, Gen. Donovan and Allan Dulles. He claimed that he knew
Allen Dulles in Switserland. It appeared to me .that these claims
were a little optimistic or fantastic, but I had no way of die-
claiming them, 86 I believed them. I was not informed on this

aspecte

Was this in 15492

1950, and 4t vas after his bresk with CIC. He said that he hoped '
Ister on he would be acospted by the Bepublican administration

and Dulles and others. For instance, I spoke with him on in-
‘telligence matters and T came to the conclusion that he would

oo B e
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only work for Americans or a German organization that was under
American sponsorship. HOETTL had once stated that Germany alone
couldn't make a success of it because the Germans did rniot have
enough funds at their disposal and secondly, because Germany
could not exist politically without American support. As a
result, German intelligence is forced to collabdrate with the
Americans. HOETTL's one preoccupation was that he was unable

to find the right American contacte
Who couldn't find the right contact?

HOETTL couldn't find the right contact with the Americans, and

I told you already that he had tried to talk to GROSSBAHN about
intelligence matters and he thought that via (GROSSEAHN he would
be able to came in contact with more influential American ‘
suthoritiss. - You probably know from my reports of hds con-
nections with the ELANK organisation and that he was fired by
BLANK but he did not claim that the Americans intervened to bring
about this acte.

What made him think that it could have been American intervention?

Pecsuse he feels that the high-ranking Americans are not his
enemies but he believes that only the lower stratas, the CIC,
and possibly soms individual personal enemies ..ad intrigued
sgainst him but that the Americens in general are his potential
friends. .

So you had discussed things along that line with HOETTL?

Yes, along this line. '

And vhat was your contribution to those discussions?

My contribution? I did not contradict HOETTL because his general
views were in meny cases similar to my own, and to tell you the
truth I believed that HOETTL could be amalgamated in the American

intelligence system, but I don't know the background of HOETTL.
Maybe there are some things' that I should know and I don'y know -

-about him.

But you feel that he could be & definite asset to the Americans?
Yes, under ‘proper control, if he were assisted by a staff officer
who has the ability to differentiate between the true and the
untrues P

He is not capable of doing that himself?

J
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No, but he certainly is a good organizer and he can find new contacts
and find new sources and can be 8 dynamic worker.

And you think that you could work successfully with a man like
HOETTL?

No, I never could. I can work with a man like GB.OSSBAHN or another
man who is well disciplined and exact and relisble and quiet.

I can understand that, but what makes you think that WILLI has
something to offer to the Americans that is of special, value?
The fact that he can make new contacts?

'He can offer in any case a large circle of fmr collabm'a.ta's

‘who would be willing to work with him again but would not work for
anyone else.

But you yourself have brought up the fact that HARRY MAST is a very
poor personality. ;

me useotmmmsf is a special one., MAST was fired bty the
CEHLEN group because of his comnections with HGETTL, and HOETTL
felt obligated to hin

Who d.oaa HOETTL have in his great circle of coupefant pooplo who ~
would permit him to build up a fine team of intelligence workers?
Who does he have? I'don'y know his circle intimately. Do you
think THEODORE ALEERT is such & good man?

IhmmoﬁdonmmommmuumIdm'tkno'hnper~
sonally tut from what I have heard I would judge that he is an
expert, but not as an intelligence officer in the field but rather
as a man at the desk who can work on political information which

comes 1.n from Slovakia, Hungary, and - the Balkans.

Who else does he have? You speak as thotugh f.he‘m were now idle
and could be of some great help in our struggle against the :
Soviets and I am interested in that, certainly, and my.government
is interested in that, but on the surface I can't see where HOETTL
has 'I:heae lnyﬂco-'worhra. VONUDIE[.ER? Is he such a good man?

No. He is not a bad mans "He is certainly anti<Commnist and
reliable. I don't imow many of his collsboratorse

Is this just an impression on your part?‘

w565
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C: No, it is a conclusion.
D2 ‘ But it mst be based upon fact, because you're an intelligent
; man and you wouldn't believe that this were true unless you had
P some reason. Did he ever say that to you? Did he ever tell you
that he had people who would work with him again if they had the
chance?
. l C: No. He could never have performed the operations that he did for I l . a0 R
L the Nazis if he didn't have a circle of loyal and capable collabora=- : ! I I
t} ; tors. AL e 4
‘o Tl Ty ‘Dt Bat you must remember that was back ten.years ago and a lot has , ]
7 - , taken place since then.. Some of the men msy be dead; some of them y
e may be in Soviet custody; some may be in South America. Do you ) -
2 pee that? E :
ol 1 . Yes, I see. _ » : I
Dt You understand what I mean? .. t

DL Yes.

S i D: - How I say that for this reason. You yourself mentioned yesterday
5 S : that one of his great weaknesses is the fact that he is a poor
et 5 . judge of human beings. - Now,.no man - can be a leader and a good

S : : ‘field captain——end that is what @ man in his position has. to be== .

unless he can judge individusls. ' s

SN

Gt ‘Yes. What he needs is én assistant who could do that.

D:  Tf that'were the case, then you would give the job to the aide,
N you wouldn't give it to HORTTL. In the business world you don't -

Vo put a menager into a factory and:then give ‘hin & crutch=-a man Al
o ‘ who; will:hold him ups ‘You hire the crutch and put him in the job . i
and do sway with the minager. Do you follow m? s gy |

; Gt TYes, but HOETTL is & dynamic force. He has many ideas. ' : "
D: He is a dynamic peraonnlim ; :
Cl'v IOS:.

D: The great problem then is chammeling that energy to go-in the S
right direction. You teke.a motor on & motorboat, for instance. ° i
If youlve got a rudder on the boat, you stop the boat and adjust ’
T the rudder north and the boat will go north, but if you put a
5 ‘ S motor on a motorboat and you don't have & rudder, what happens?
. F e : The boat keeps going around in circles, isn't that true?

-57 =
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It is the difference between the capitalist and the workers.
HOBTIL has the capital and the workesrs should do the work.

But does he? That is what I question. Does he really hold the
capital? :

It would really be interesting to investigate that matter.

That won't be necessary. Do you realise that the information that
you gave to HOETIL in your political reports was soms of the best
information which he had? Do you realise that?

(Langhs out loud.) Ko.

It's trus; I'm serious. Now you have your own question answered.

That information which you say was something that anybody could

have gotten out of the newspapers and with some kiowledge of the

Austrian soene ceuld have written was some of the very best in-
ou

That's the truth. Why do you think he was giving you the 600
schillings?

I don't knowe

Be wanted ms t0 edit his newspaper reports.

Wy do you think that he is interested in your doing this editing
work even thowgh you will be in Germany? Because he probably
hopes, I think, that you will eventually get so well acquainted
with the German political scene that you will be able to give him
the same kind of political summaries from Cermany that you formerly
prepared here in Austria and that be would be able to sell here to
somsons who is interested in the German political picture.

I don'¢ think s0.

Well, you might say that, but I'll tell you how the pattern has
worked out. The information that you gave him, these political
semaries, was some of the very best information he had, and
tht is the way it is regarded by the people who ultimately re-
osived it. If somstime he does want you to start writing the
sams kind of thing in Germany for him so that he can put it in
the hands of peopls, possibly in the Austrisn govermment, who
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don't know the Cerman scene and who would be impressed by your
WOrKeseo

What do you advise?

advice to you is to stay away from HOETTL. You will be well
off and I'll explain to you why. This is somsthing I'm telling
you in friendship; this isn't my professional advice.

Thank you.

Here's the thing. You are very fond of HOETTL and I admire you
for it. You're a good, loyal and a very true friend to HOETIL.
You appreciate the fact that he saved your life and you are in-
debted to him for that. That's a wonderful characteristic in a
man, and you should never forget that HOETIL saved your life.
But on the other hand, do not be blinded by this obligation be-
cause if you review HOETTL's history in the eight years you will
see that HOETIL has gone downhill, downhill, downhill. And here
are the facts. He was several times employed by the Americans.

_They were dissatisfied with him. He was employed by the Germans.

They eventually became dissatisfied with him. HNow you can accept
his explanation of why they were digsatisfied if yow.wish, but
one thing you can'’y deny is that the West is fighting a desperate
battle with the Easte-with the Soviets—and we will pick up any
man we can who will help us defeat the Soviets—any man, no
matter what his Nagi record was. Possibly not the worst ones—
the war criminals--but a man in HOETTL's category certainly would
be acceptable to the West. He was acceptable at one time when he
worked for CIC, but he failed. He failed to measure up to the
standards of CIC and he failed to measure up to the standards of
his German contacts. Now I say that the man is washed up. He is
what we call a "has-been.® TYou have the type in the journclistie
field; you have a man who writes a perfectly good book or two or
three novels and then begins to slip. It happens in every pro-
fession: engineering, medicine, any professicon you can nsme. What
happens to this individual? He begins living in the past. He
begins living in fantasy. He can't fece the fact that he is
finished, that he is no longer a big-shot, that he no longer has
troops to command, that he doesn'y have subordinates who are there
to be directed by him, and so fantasy enters the picture. You see
the result of this in the Geiswinkler articles, in the Totss
Gebirge article; there is the evidence right there. What has
happened. to this man who was once according to your word a very
fine intelligence officer? What has happened to him? He has
gone dowm to the gutter of the game; he has slipped right dowmn to
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the bottom of the ladder so that now he is writing articles based
upon fantasy and sekling them to the newspapers. It doesn't matter
whether he gets a thousand or two thousand schillings. Where is
his own feeling about himself, about his reputation? When & man
begins to lose consideration for his own reputation, then he is a
dangerous individual with whom to associate. You wouldn't do that.
Would you write an article with your byline, a fake article which
you had taken from somebody else, and plagiarisze it?

No.

A1l right, you wouldn't. You have too much respect far your name,
don't, you, and for your professional standards, and that is a credit
to you. So what has happened to this friend of yours?

I don't know. Your description is 'vnry impressive and I accept your
advice.

I don't want you to accept it; just think about it. It's your
business; he's your friend.

No no, I accept your advise as an official and a person.
It is personal advice based upon an objective examination.
Bit what to do about the editing of his new book?

Well, I'm not talking about that. You've entered into this agree-
mant with him; it's up to you to settle the matter. I see no reason
why you can't edit his book and even if you want to, to cantime
preparing his articles for the paper, but I tell you this: that
unless my guess is wrong, WILLI HOETTL is going to want you to do
some intelligence wark for him in Germany, and that is where

you'll be getting into the danger zone.

No. I assure you that I never intended to do any work for HOETTL
in Germany and I will not do so.

What are you going to do if he says toyou, *You have boenwa-ld.ng
for me for a year and a half. I've paid you 600 schillings a month
for these political reparts. What do you think that I did with
the reparts?™ What will you say if he puts it up to you in that
way? - Are you going to say like a schoolboy, "Well, I didn't know
that was political intelligence; that was just something that I
picked up from the newspaper and then I put my own ideas in and I
gave it to you." Do you think he will be satisfied with that?

e
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C: T never estimated my work in that way.
D: He certainly estimated it that way. One thing that I can't

understand: you're & good friend of HOETTL's and you did this

work for him even without payj; you're a good friend of GROSSBAHN
and he helped you to make nice money and you had a good relation-
ship with him. I can't understand why you didn't tell GROSSBAHN
about your work for WILLI. : ! i

C: I admitted it was probably a fault of mine. : R

D: But you must bave had some reason for holding back that informa- :
tion. Were you ashamed of your work for HOEITL? Were you afraid i
that GROSSBAHN wouldn't approve? ;

C: No.. Maybe I'was afraid that GROSSBAHN would want me to discontinue
this activity.

|

|

D: Why? Because GROSSBAHN might not think you were getting this in- . ‘
formation from the newspapers?
|

\

C: No. Because GROSSBAHN would not appreciate such close collabaration
with HOETTL.

D: I see. Well, that sounds plausible; I can understand that. But
you now think it was a mistake that you didn't tell GROSSBAHN?

C: Yes. You must see my situation between GROSSBAHN and HORTTL.
It was very difficult. It was difficult to be loyal to GROSSBAHN
on the one side and on the other side to be loyal -to HOETTL.

Ds Where was your greatest loyalty?
C:  The only way out was to cut off the connection with HOETTL.

D: Were you disturbed by this situation? Did you lie awake at night
because of the fact that you were giving this information and
GROSSBAHN wasn't told about it, and on the other side you felt in- h §

. debted. to WILLI and felt that GROSSBAHN might have objected to the . 1
close collaboration? Were you bothered by that at all? Do you . ‘
understand me? (In German) Did it bother your conscience? H

C: Yes, naturally. It was difficult for me to spy on HOETTL and on
the other hand I felt it was my duty to report on my contacts with 1
HOETTL to GROSSBAHN. I considered that as a disloyal act to
HOETTL.
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D: That bothered you? !
C: Also it bothered me when I didn't report all that I was doing
- for HOETTL to GROSSRAHN.
D: This is the time to clear it up. Are you sure that you didn't !
tell HOETTL anything else about your work for GROSSBAHN? !
! Ct I did not. . . # =
D: Did you feel that your loyalty was stronger or greater to HOETTL st 4
than to GROSSBAHN? l
3 . _ !
7 L .C: . No. My doyalty to my Americans obligations was by far the stronger. ]
i : : ; !
D: But on the personal side, since you have known WILLI much longer
i than GROSSBAHN and WILLI has saved your life and so forth, the
’ I ‘personal feeling must have been stronger to WILLI.
; C: - Yes, possibly. ' i
i D: I'm trying to differentiate between the peraonai and the professional [
: here i
i . : :
c: I bave never coasidered this matter in detail. My personal relations 1 i
with GROSSBAHN are tharoughly agreeable and I never bad troubles i
with him. T would have accepbed the opportunity to go to Germany =
even though I had not found myself in this situation between WILLI §
and GROSSBAHN, but the oppartunity which the new job presented far |
me to get out of this impasse was an additional motive which con- ;
vinced me to sever my relations with GROSSBAHN.
Ds . I'm glad that you have mentioned it because I suspected that that ' ,
. could have been the case. i
, Cs Yes, I seé no reason for not clearing up these matters. ,
f g
- t p : . . g i
= D: That's what we want to do, you see, and I think that it is very i
: good of you to be so honest and help us to understand this relation- !
o ship which has been very cloudy to us. |
- ! |
! C: Yes, very bloudy, and even a separation of two years or three f
| years might enable us to work together again, starting with a new i
foundation, .
D: You said it would have to be as long as that?
| :
: -r ¢ ; i
| - R I Qg‘\
[ :
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Maybe one year would be enough. The case of HOETTL nevertheless
is depressing.

It depresses you because you would like to help him as a friend.

Yes, even though I admit you are right in your description of
hime

Look at the man now and the man as he was ten years ago when he
was dining with you at the Hotel Adlon. He was & big shot. He
was a ranking officer in the German intelligence, a man who was
respected and who did a good job. Then look at the man today,
writing Geiswinkler articles for the Salsburger Nachrichten.

It is a poor turn of events.

There's no question about it. And further than that, tying up ’
with men like KERNMAYER, tying up with men like MAST. You have
got to draw the line between loyalty and blind devotion, you know.
You can't be eternally obligated even with a man like HOETTL just
becanse he saved your life, or you're going to find yourself in

a difficult situation. See what I mean?

What do you advise me to do when I'm in Germany?

My advice to you is to stay clear of any of that stuff and as
soon as you smell it, keep your hands away. Say, "I'm not in-
terested in it; I nevér participated in for anybody; I never =
worked for the Americans," etc. Because they could never hawve
access to our file and the facts. They can suspect all they
want, and if they say, "Yes, we know from MANDEL that you did
this,” or "We know from this man that you did this,"™ you can say,
"Are you taking my word against his? Where is the proof?® The
matter would never be brought out in the open, so that you can
wleays deny your past affiliation, but you've got to be strong ia
that regard when you're in Germany. As soon &8s someone comes
along who wants you to write a political summary for Mr. X, who
is sitting up on the top of a mountain and whom you will never
meet, you know enough about the business now, you're a smart man
to say, "Thanks very much, but unless I know what this whole
proposition is, unless I see my articles in the paper on a monthly
basis, it's nothing for me."

Oh, I will continue to write my political summaries on Germany
and T will send them to GROSSBAHN free of charge.

o
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Dz That's good. I'11 appreciate it, and in that way you'll get rid

; of the drive to do creative wark, which is a very fine thing.

| 5 ; It's like an author who has an idea and wants to put it on paper.
% If you want to send it to someone afterwards, send it to .

GROSSBAHN.

Well, I think we've both learned a lot thifough these meetings,
Don't you feel that we have learned?

C: Oh yes. ‘ A P
§ ‘
D: You've been honest with me, and I've been honest with you.

< L, r : ; Cs I have appreciated very mmch the opportunity to talk with you,

: g and I'm sorry that I didn't have a.chance to do so a long time
&go. One can see this same matter from more than two gides. I
always locked at my relations with HOETTL from just one side.

D: You said that you were getting 600 schillings a month from WILIT
Just because WILLI thought you were a good fellow.

C: Bus he is a good fellow, especially in money matters.

D:. But you aren't pressed for the money; you were getting a fairly
: ‘nice ‘salary. Wasn't that enough to support your wife and two -
children?

C: No, the money wasn't so important. I could have done the work
: - without it, :

D: Well, you did it without it. Since August of last year you per-
formed your work without P&y. How is your salary going to be
in Germany? Is it quite satisfactory? ) :

C: I have two salaries: 1200 marks from the Rheinische Merkur,
and Herder will pay me 300 marks. ’ :

D:  That will be 1500 marks. You should be able to live quite-
nicelyu

- i, CCs OH yes. In Austria no newspaper could pay this much, except o !
the Neues Oesterreich.

D: ‘Does the Neues Oesterreich seem to have a lot of money?

C: Their circulation is estimated to be about 250,000.

-6l -
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Is their circulation bigger than the Kurier?

No, about the same. The Kurier is also a well-to-do _qnter—
prise. -
They have good backing. ad

bl
Let's see if there is anything else. I think we've gone over
most if not all of the unclear areas and I thinkthat it is
all cleared up now. I will look over the file again about
BORODAJKEWYCZ and I will examine your reports again.

My reparts on BORODAJKEWYCZ are all in GROSSBAEN's file , and
he could give them to you.

It would be appreciated if you would let us kmow when you are
coming back to Austria because there may be a few questions,
and if we could talk to you for a couple of hours--we would pay
you for your time—- "

That won't be necessary.

It could be arranged maybe while you're on the way back from
your vacation, or you might come in while you are on vacation
and we'll pay the train or bus fare.

I will keep in touch with GROSSBAHN and, via GROSSBAHN, with
you. :

That's fine. I've appreciated the opportunity to talk over these
things. I hope that you have real success in your new jobe

w 88
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: Chief of Base, Salzw

- seectric—GROSSBAEN = CC-2, etc.

i References: a. FEASW-188
i bs. EASA=770
c. EASW-88
et. al. y
,’Iltwma
LIS g2 1467
1. L A re-examined CC-2 on LCFLUTTER, on 12 March 1953.

Results are attached hereto in single copy only .(as Attachment 4), as = 3
wished us to have theresults of the test promptly and furnished. same in
rough draft form. His formal report will be furnished from his home base.

2. Grossbahn met CC-2 just prior to the ICFLUTTER test mad again the G
next morning after the test. These Grossbahn reports (G-=180 and G-185) are -
attached hereto as Attachments B and C, respectively. The results of the :
test, taken together with Grossbabn's later report (G-185) lead us to the

“conclusion that CC-2 is probably truthfully unaware of how much and what

specific information he did pass to HOETTL. The key point of the relation-
ship seems to occur when Hoettl started to push on the person of Grossbahn

and CC-2 exhibited two clear facets; he, first of all, was unable to ade-
quately answer Hoettl's questions for he never met cr saw any U. S. per-
sonnel and Grossbahn was always scrupulously careful to keep financial trans-
actions away from the other members of his staff. Secondly, from what e

can read between the lines, CC-2 was having pangs of conscience in even tgy=
ine with the idea of reporting on his friemnd and boss, Grossbahn. We feel

L I's conjecture at this point is probably accuratej he used LCFLUTTER as-

a dodge in attempting to avoid Hoettl's line of questioning, stating ‘that

even if he could answer the questions.it would do no good for when he got

back on LOFIUTTER the fact would come out. (CC-2 appears to admi+ ’rhis

fact, though somewhat vaguely. See middle of Page 2, G-185.) T 17s other.
conjecture, post-test, that probably a culmination of personal problems plus.
the unbearable pressure from Hoetll resulted in CC-2's decision to offer his
resignation to Grossbahn. We feel this theory is probably a sound one whether .
cc-2 *- ﬂnnacious of his reasons for quitting or not. As can be surmised
framp- 37s report, CC-2 is rather a camplex type pemona.lity and especially
dfficult to pin down to specific points. He seems to reason his change of
employment in terms of a more attractive job, but we are inclined to feel,

all in all, matters just became too much for him ad the only solution ap-
peared to be a complete change of .scenery. ;

1
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3. We are still inclined toward the view, as expressed in EASA-770,

that the damage to Grossoahn operations does not appear serious, though
we are still at considerable loss, despite the LCFLUTTER test, to ac-
curately estimate the damage, if any. Providence, plus the ineptness
of friend Hoettl, seems to have spared us from a greater blow. CC-2's.
mind appears quite remarkable to the extent he gppears to have the dubious
faculty of not letting himself remember that which he finds unpleasant to
recall, and, as = 2 correctly points out, the one real solution left
open to us for getting at the bottom of the matter appears to be the in-
terrogation of Hoettl himself. We are indeed happy to report that a war-

rant for Hoettl's arrest was issued by G-2, USFA. an 2 Mareh 1953 -on’the
basis of his complicity in the Tophole case. L J of VOB will
handle our end of the interrogation. He has spent the 24th and most of
tha 25th nreparine his brief in conjunction with members of this base, plus
= 1 of POB, who has many questions regarding Zipper oper=-
ations he wishes to clsar up with the good Dr. Posing questions which
will lead up to a revelation of how badly CC-2 compromised Grossbahn's
operations with Hoettl is of necessity a fairly delicate matter, for we
wish to avoid disclosing undue interest in either CC-2 or Grossbahn, if
possible. - We hope to be able to get him to open up on this matter by
dealing with various personalities in which the names of CC-2 and Gross-
bahn will be inserted. It may well be that we will findl ly have to re-
sort to direct questioning, but even though we do, are not inclined to
feel this will be especiallv damaging as the entire interrogation will be
under G-2 auspices and T 7] is fairly well identified in the Salzburg
area as a G-2 person. uirect KUBARK interest in CC-2 and Grossbalm should
be adequately camouflaged. The results of the Hoettl interrogation should
be most enlightening and we will pouch the results in the near future.

L. The wire recording transcript of L 1's interrogation of
CC-2 is campleted and a copy is attached hereto as Attachment D. The
matter of Theodor von ALBERT, which you raise in para | of. reference a,
is apparently cleared up on pages 31 and 3L. Note that CE=~2 did handle
the money transaction for von Albert, but through sn intemediary and thus
never came into direct contact with von Albert.

5« The point which you.raise regarding payments from Hoettl to CC-2
in para 5 of reference a appears to have a fairly simple explanation., The
Actual sum of cash which changed hands between .the two each month did vary,
considerably and probably did, at times , reach the amount of 2,000 schillings.
However, as you will note from the transcript, CC-2 points out that a lar-
ger part of this sum was for his share in the royalty commissions on HoettlTs
book for his translation worke The sum which Hoettl was paying far *“he
political reports was never set exactly, but varied fmm 500 to 1,000
schillings per month, so that CC-2 claims it was difficult, if not imposg=
sible, to now recall what amounts were for royalties and what amounts were
for the reports. We find it difficult to believe that anyone could be so
naive about money matters as CC-2 pretends to be. One fact worth noting
in this regard is that Hoettl still owas CC-2 money for the Italian, Franch
and Spanish editions, which means they will probably be coming together agad.n M
in the future to straighten out their financial-affairs. ;
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6. Other points raised in EASW-188 will be made the subjects of

separate dispatches.
Z @ c#' :
a

Attachments:
A. LCFLUTTERING o” GROSSBAHN Agent, CC-2
- Ce G=185
- Do = By Interrogation of CC-2

Distri s
2 3?(}‘/&“.)
3 - Vien (1 w/atts.)
; 1 - Sals chrono .
"1 - Salg #101 (w/atts.)
- 1 - Salz RCM Notebook (w/atts.)
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: CLASSIFICATION
™  : Culef, E oae 0 Marh 1953
Attention: L a
FROM : Chief of Base, Sallburg’
SUBJECT: ceneraL— Op/GROOVY
speciric— GROSSBARN - CC-2 .

- General Security
Raference: EASW-188

1. The points you raise in paragraph 3 of reference are valid

and require thorough consideration. We have never stoutly contended that

the Grossbahn operation was campletely clandestine and have oft-mn wondered

out loud, in memo form, how he retains his cloak of anonimity so well in

the hotbed of Salzburg intrigue. Grossbahn is entering his sixth year of

service with KUBARK and it is inevitable that anyone whostays in place

that long is going to commence to wear a bit thin at the cover sems. In :

spite of his shortcomings in this security regard (a few soft spots show- =
" ing up as exemplified in the CC-2 affair), we do feel that what Grossbaln 7

has to offer us cdoes outweigh a certain lack of clandestinity. He is our -

long arm, sweeping the local landscape; an armm which is extremely flexible e

and can be adjusted to give most desired results. At the same time, he “

does serve as an effective block between field operations and the front

door of SOB. If we tried to run the same operations with sfaff personnel

as we are now running through Grossbahn, we might be faced with the possi-

bility of having the roll-up came through the SOB door. We feel an excel-

lent example in point was the Slovakian operation, which stopped one link

short of Grossbahn in the persons of SIAA and XX-1.

2. Naturally, we agree the one weakness of such theorizing lies

-in a possible penetration as we have had forced home to us in the CC-2 _

case. To this can be said that CC-2 could tell Hoettl little even had he

been soinclined. He could identify no U. S. personnel, he could give

no financial run-down and could make no guesses as to Grossbahn's degree

of cooperation with and attitude towards his employers. This would seem

to speak well for the care with which Crossbahn handles his staff. In

this vein, we have mude it a fetish to get all Grossbahn's people-on LC-

FLUTTER and have been successful in doing so, with a few.minor. exceptionse.

Given time, we will have the slate camplete. Grossbahn personally is due

for a re-check, which we hope to schedule within the next few months.

Not that we have any misglvings about Grossbahn's basic loyalties; we

merely wish to make sure and also have a few minor points, such as the oA
OFFCZAREK affair, to clean up. \ G
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3. Thus we come down to the following facts we wish to establish;
penstration at a low level in the Orossbahn operation would be camparati vely
unrewarding vis-a-vis a penctration of XUBARK due to the effective screen-
ing operation Grossbahn performs for us and the care with which he handles

v ey

his persamel. Secondly, we have checked out all main personalities utilized

by Grossbahn -on LCFLUTTER and will maintain a schedule of periodic re-
check. The groat danger for us liea in a pemetration through Grossbehn
himself, a thought we find hard to reconcile with fact. Be that as it may,
in spite of our feelings that Grocsbahn is essentially our man, we do
intend to apply the same procedures to him as to therest of his operstian;
he will be re-checked periodically on LCFLUTTER and we will apply the
traditional testing techniques, continue gathering detuiled persanalia on
all his contacts and continue checking his details against facts camingin
from other sources.

L. Rounding out the picture in regards to the personal security of
Grossbahn, needless to say, we are over-cautions in this respect,. are
constantly lecturing him on the need to keep his guard high and usually
escort him on any trips where we feel there is an unreasonable degree of
danger, e.g., trips to Vienna are made with his case officer via 3
mea s. .

S. We appreciate your thoughts in regard to the need for a thorough
CE analysis, but locking back on the Grossbahn operation for" the period
since SOB took it over, we gain the impression that we have done a fairly
thorough job of polishing off the roughest cormers, and except for pos-
sibly a few minor chinks close to Grossbahn personally, the operation has
been overhauled and streamlined. The Slovakian and Hungarian operations
are by the board, and possibly with a good deal of luck, the Grace of God,
and sound compartmentation by Grossbahn, we came out of those without any
terrifying compromises. XX-1, who was the one closest to Crossbalmn to be-
come compromised, is slated for HEE employment as soon as we can work out
the final details, SIAA, who was also badly burped, has long since been
dropped. CC-2, another soft spot, is gone. Our recent memo (EASA-1096),
which fairly vel.l winds up the CC-2 affair, expresses our previous thoughts
that the damage CC-2 was ahle to do through HOETTL appears to be insignifi-
cant. We are in the throes of an operation involving AA-2 (ref. RBASA-1097)
which should throw considerable cold GE light on the entire AA operation.

6. The only important assets left untouched upon in the preceding
paragraph are: HH<1, Z2-1, PP group in Salzburg and the CC administrative
staff close to Grossbahn. We did deal at same length regarding Grossbahn's
takeover of the HH-1 contact from CC-2 in EASA-819. The contact with
2Z-1 has been reported on a continuous bagis and appears fairly sound and
secure. The PF group in Salzburg is one spot where we might spend some
time looking into operations from 2 general CE standpoint. We will take
this matter up with Grossbahn, time and conditions permitting. The re-
maining CC staff close to Gressbahn are his most trusted employees and,
naturally, the most sensitive spot in his operations. We feel his

s
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handling of his staff has been exceptionally sound (e.g. the case of

CC~2 who could tell 1little even had he so wished), but we will continue
to do all possible to insure that his standards of compartmentation are
maintained at the highest possible level. Another factor is that the
personal relationship between Grossbahn and his staff is of such a nature,
in spite of the unfortunate CC-2 experience, that we do feel that they
would bollg&l enough to report.any attempts to wring information from
thems To* can be added theegye-opening experience Grossbaln has re-
cently gone through with CC-2, which we feel will tend 'to mske him ex-
tremely CE sensitive toward his remaining staff.,

" T« The probtlem of EB-1, which is a peripheral one as Grossbahn
sees him very seldom -- the relationship is more personal than usitess
in nature -- is being treated with separately on the basis of EASW-1L9
and G.rouhhn'i report will be forwarded shortly. i

e \

© 8. We do not wish to convey the impresasion that we feel all is rosy-
hied vis-a-vis the CE aspects of the Grossbahn operation. One thing that
bothers us considerably along this line is the predeliction of Grossbahn's
people for casually throwing out a name a few years after they first es-
tablish contact. All his people, past and present, have carried sources,
sub-scurces, operational contacts, political and/or social contacts with-
out ever quite clarifying their status. Grossbahn has been equally guilty
in this regard as witness your recent questions in EASW-1l9 concerning his
exact relationship with EE-1. We have cracked down -- probably not as
hard as we should -- on Grossbahn and have stated that he must furnish a
listing of all operational caontacts since the inception of his operations.
We realize this is.a tremendous task, but we see no other way around the

problem, Somé¢ added examples we can cite -- and items we are working on =

are PP-1's "contacts in thé Ministry of Interior® "cantacts in Vienna
city Police®, AA-]l and AA-2's relationships with. WOHLAIEMUTH in
Vienna, and. the status of Groasbahn's "liaison® relationship with STAA
and SIAG. These are same of the things that really bother us about the
Grossbahn operation and we consider them an extremely serious CE weakness.
As we have said, ocur first step will be the operational contact list we
are pressuring Grossbahn for and we hope from there to establish a-degree
of progress in determining exactly how far the periphery of Grossbahn's
operations extend. )
9. We have thus lead ourselves around to the point we wished to

establish originally in paragraph 5, that circumstances, coupled with our
own efforts, have forced us to conduct CE analysis of the Grossbahn oper-
ation on a continuing basis. There are a few spots left untouched, as we
have pointed out, and.we will strive to do a bit of poking around in these

corners.
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ANTON BOEEM, RESIDING AT NEUTORSTRASSE 192, SALZBURG, IS LISTED AS A TIB
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